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Corporate Social
Responsibility
Since the partition and establishment of Pakistan, 
Agha Family has invested all its resources for not 
only the economic development of Pakistan but 
also for uplifting the life of common man through 
innovative ideas in order to supplement basic 
human needs. 

The Pro Pakistani business and its sponsors 
inherited the pain for common man as the most 
cherished heritage of the family. Luckily, over the 
years this pain for underprivileged has been 
corporatized through the term denoted as 
‘Corporate Social Responsibility’.

Company’s corporate social vision is based on the 
3P’s … People, Planet and Profits.
For some the Profits might come first, but 
Company’s first and foremost vision is to value 
people. Company’s social responsibility’s charter 
entails valuing natural resources, keeping a green 
process as well as earning higher profits.

Company believes that sustainable business not 
only excels on the traditional scorecard of return 
on financial assets and shareholder and customer 
value creation, but it also embraces community 
and stakeholder success. It holds its natural and 
cultural environments to be as precious as its 
technological portfolio and its employees' skills.

People

Company recognizes the responsibility to its 
employees and to the wider communities in which 
it works. Company understands how its practices 
affect the corporation, its workers, and wider 
stakeholders, and it works to promote all of their 
best interests. Beside high Quality health 
standards, Company provide its employees with 
retirement benefits, annual bonus, leave fare 
assistance and HNR insurance covering maternal 
expenditure as well. Company’s HR department is 
striving for constant in-house and external training 
programs as a part of Company’s overall CSR 
charter. This helps not only keeping employees 
abreast with the latest technological / 
organizational advancements but also provides 
corporate sector with quality professionals. 

As a part of its CSR charter, Company has 
established a state of the art Advance Health 
Facility ‘Agha Dialysis Center’ that serves under 
privileged contingent of the society for free without 
any discrimination of caste, ethnicity or economic 
group. Currently the Agha Dialysis Center has 
sixteen operative dialysis machines through 
which 78,000 dialysis has been carried out, 
making it the largest free of cost dialysis facility of 
Pakistan.

Planet

Company’s dedication to sustainable 
environmental processes can be judged by its 
environment friendly green manufacturing unit. 
With green processes Company can save money 
and reduce environmental footprints by reducing 
waste, conserving energy, and maintaining 
environmentally safe manufacturing processes. 
Company is in process as acquiring Fume 
Treatment Technology to be added to its existing 
state of the art Electric Arc furnace.

Profit

Company is continually reducing its costs since 
the inception of the business, achieving a 
contribution margin within 9 months of its 
commercial production. Vigilant Management 
intent is always seeking an opportunity to reduce 
cost without compromising the quality.

Clearly, making money is essential to business 
success. The company, recognizes that its own 
sustainability rests on its ability to work 
harmoniously in its social and environmental 
settings. For this reason, the costs of pollution, 
worker displacement, and other factors are 
included in profit calculations.

Agha Steel Industries organizes its Corporate 
Social Responsibility activity through the Agha 
Welfare Trust (“AGWT”). The basic structure of the 
activities is as follows:
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Some of the major projects which have been undertaken by AGWT include:

  
 

AGHA WELFARE TRUST–OPERATIVE DIVISIONS

ASI CARES

RURAL RESOURCE
CAPITALIZAITON

SCHEME

AGHA DIALYSIS
CENTRE (ADC)

AGHA STEEL
INDUSTRIES

AGHA WELFARE
TRUST 

Agha Dialysis Center (“ADC”)

Agha Dialysis Center (ADC) is established to 
provide world class hemodialysis health care 
facility. At ADC not only we provide patients with 
extended dialysis hours on world class Toray® 
Machines, but also council the patients through 
psychological sessions in order to facilitate them 
back to usual life. We believe that with state of the 
art modern equipment, quality nutrition and 
psychological counseling, a dialysis patient 
should not feel alienated in the society. ADC is 
rehabilitating hemodialysis patients back to the 
society so that they can contribute towards the 
growth of Pakistan as well. 

Details could be found at 
www.aghadialysis.org

The first center was established in September 
2015 at Bait-ul-Sukoon Cancer Hospital in 
Karachi. This six bed-three shift Hemodialysis 

facility has served free cost 7,000 plus dialysis to 
date. Second center was established in 2016 at 
Fatmiyah Hospital with a facility of 6 beds that 
were capable to cater 18 patients in 3 shifts. The 
third and state of the art facilitated dialysis center 
was established at Imam Clinic in 2018 with a 
total bed space of 11 beds that were capable to 
cater 33 patients in 3 shifts. At present ADC has 
served more than 78,000 dialysis free of cost from 
these three centers. 

ADC, unlike any other dialysis center in Pakistan, 
not only provides extended dialysis hours to the 
patients but also facilitates free of cost labs and 
blood deficiency tests through its strategic 
partner, Hussaini Hematology & Blood Bank. Free 
of cost medicines are also provided during the 
dialysis procedure.  The second and third center 
at Fatmiyah Hospital and Imam Clinic at Karachi 
is successfully catering the needs of dialysis 
patients.

Policies
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Sustainability and
Guiding Principles
Sustainability is an integral part of our business 
strategy and a key driver in all of our business 
activities. Our innovative technologies, 
operational experience and expertise enable us 
to minimize our environmental impact and 
successfully manage the social challenges and 
inherent risk that are present in our industry.

Our guiding principles for sustainability are 
as follows:

• Maintain highest degree of corporate 
governance practices.

• Conduct business activities with the highest 
principles of honesty, integrity, truthfulness 
and honor. 

• Promote ethical business practices.
• Respect the environment and communities 

in which we operate.
• Assure equal employment opportunities. 
• Value diversity in the workplace.
• Provide healthy and safe working 

environments.
• Respect human rights and trade ethically.
• Act in utmost good faith and exercise due 

care, diligence and integrity in performing 
the office duties.

• Comply with all applicable laws and 
regulations.

• Ensure that all business transactions are 
recorded in true, fair and timely fashion in 
accordance with the accounting and 
fi¬nancial reporting standards, as applicable 
to the Company.

• Deliver superior value for our shareholders − 
our intent is to outperform our competitors by 
delivering superior growth, margins and 
returns to our shareholders.

• Lead the industry in innovation, technology 
development and conscientious stewardship 
of global resources − our intent is to develop 
technological solutions that give our 
customers economic 

• Access to high quality construction material 
with maximum use of scarce resources and 
maximize the value of their existing assets.

• Enhance the economic and social well-being 
of our employees, their families and the 
communities in which we operate − our 
intent is to be a preferred employer and 
make a positive impact in the communities 
where we live and work.

• Be transparent in reporting and validating 
our progress − our intent is to provide our 
stakeholders with thorough and timely 
information on our progress.

SOCIAL AND ENVIRONMENTAL 
RESPONSIBILITY POLICY

The Company’s Social and Environmental 
Responsibility Policy envisages an active 
commitment and participation on the part of the 
Company in various social work initiatives as part 
of its corporate social responsibility various social 
and charitable causes including towards health 
and education sectors. In this regard, it has 
worked with many reputable organizations and 
NGOs in Pakistan. Being a conscientious 
member of the corporate community, the 
Company contributes generously to various 
social and charitable including towards health 
and education sectors. In this regard, it has 
worked with many reputable organizations and 
NGOs in Pakistan.

Agha Dialysis Center is a CSR project taken up 
by Agha Steel Industries. We, as an organization, 
recognize that social welfare of our community is 
as important as any other aspect of our business, 
and keeping that in mind, we have undertaken a 
project to provide free dialysis treatments to 
kidney patients all over Pakistan. We believe that 
nobody deserves to die, just because they cannot 
afford to live. And keeping this in mind, we have 
been on mission to save as many lives as 
possible from the 21 million renal disease 
patients in our country.

The Company is fully committed to acting in 
an environmentally responsible manner. To 
achieve this result, we:

1.  Ensure our product and operations comply 
with relevant environmental legislation and 
regulations.

2.  Maintain and continually improve our 
environmental management systems to 
conform to the ISO-14001 Standard or more 
stringent requirements as dictated by specif-
ic markets or local regulations.

3.  Operate in a manner that is committed to 
continuous improvement in environmental 
sustainability through recycling, conserva-
tion of resources, prevention of pollution, 
product development, and promotion of 
environmental responsibility amongst our 
employees. 

4.  Ensure that no emission of hazardous mate-
rials emits from the company factory.

5. Inform suppliers, including contractors, of 
our environmental expectations and require 
them to adopt environmental management 
practices aligned with these expectations.

The Board of Directors has approved and continuously reviews the IT Policy and Business Continuity 
Plan of the Company. The management has arranged offsite data storage facilities. All the key records 
are being maintained at different locations. Employees are aware of the steps required to be taken in 
case of any emergency

Business Continuity and Disaster Recovery Plan

Introduction

The concept of Business Continuity Planning has over the past few years, become a major business 
management requirement. Business Continuity Planning is a process used to develop a practical plan 
for how a business could recover or partially restore critical business activities within a predetermined 
timeframe after a crisis or disaster. The resulting plan is called a Business Continuity Plan.
Business Continuity Plan

Manufacturing Facilities

Manufacturing facility of the Company is in Port Qasim Karachi. The Company’s manufacturing facility 
is a state of the art construction and the structure is earthquake proof. The building is fire resilient and 
is fully equipped with modern firefighting equipment. It also meets HSE requirements at all levels. 
Despite of all these arrangements, insurance coverage is made at the maximum level. In case of any 
natural disaster, the company would be able to recover its financial loss through insurance coverage. 
Hence, partial loss would not affect the company operations. Moreover, other locations of the Group 
are available as alternate locations therefore; interruptions, if any, can be managed.

Identification of Potential Issues and the Plan Update

Potential issues are identified and updated from time to time to have an up to the mark solution for the 
anticipated problems. For such identification, independent studies are conducted and drills are carried 
out. Plans are updated based on the results of the studies and drills.

Disaster Recovery Plan and IT Infrastructure

The Company has its production server facility at Port Qasim Karachi with backup server facility at 
Lahore and Islamabad. In case of any disaster, the company would be able to continue its operations 
smoothly. Availability of servers at such distant locations enables the Company to perform its IT 
functions without any glitches in case of any infrastructural damage at any one location. Moreover, the 
company has multiple locations within Pakistan. Operations can be carried through all of the locations 
situated in Pakistan. During Lockdowns imposed by Government. In view of COVID-19, company’s 
employees worked from home smoothly via Cloud.

Business Continuity and
Disaster Recovery Policy
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Human Resource Policy
At Agha Steel Industries Limited we attribute our continued success to our people. Our employees are 
our enduring advantage and it is our ability to create high performance teams in a culture of 
inclusiveness, professionalism and excellence that drives our growth. To maintain our HR 
competitiveness, we remain focused on areas of talent Program. We undertook several recruitment 
drives with an aim to find the best talent that would build the company-wide pipeline of emerging 
leaders and also to be part of our enterprising organizational culture.

Industrial Relations

We maintain excellent relations with our employees and labor. There is a formal labor union in place 
which represents of workers and independently takes care of all labor related issues. The Company 
takes every reasonable step for swift all classes and amicable resolution of all their issues.

Succession Planning

Our Succession Planning policy is aimed at building a pipeline for future leadership and creating 
backups for critical roles. The salient features of this policy are detailed as under:

•  Talent Assessment is conducted based on achievements, Competencies and Group Values.

•  Gap Analysis is done to determine time period and tools needed to groom / develop them as 
possible successors.

•  Put through an outbound Leadership Course to determine areas of development vis-a-vis leader-
ship.

•  On-going coaching / rotation / training and developmental plans are in place bring out best in class 
talent for succession.

•  To deep reach successors at all levels, upward mobility is a pre-requisite in the hiring program.

Core Values

Values are what support the vision, shape the culture and reflect what an organization values. They are 
the essence of the organization’s identity the principles, beliefs or philosophy of values. We have 
recently relaunched our Core Values (Respect, Fairness, Quality, Ownership and have imbedded them 
in our recruitment process, performance appraisals and recognition initiatives.

Whistle Blowing Policy
'SPEAK UP' With Confidence

AGHA STEEL INDUSTRIES LIMITED (AGHA) is committed to conducting its business and working 
with all stakeholders, including employees, suppliers, customers, and shareholders in a manner that 
is lawful and ethically responsible. Therefore, Whistle Blowing Policy has been issued to enable all 
stakeholders to make fair and prompt disclosure of circumstances where it is genuinely believed that 
the company’s business is being carried out in an inappropriate manner or in violation of applicable 
laws, company policies, procedures and ethical values.

Actions covered under the Policy

This policy covers any action which results, or is likely to result, in any misconduct which goes against 
company values, such as fraud, breach of Code of Conduct, theft, any action endangering the health 
and/ or safety of any individual, etc.

Method of filing Whistle Blowing Complaint

Various modes of Whistle Blowing complaint filing are being introduced under the policy, which 
includes direct email to the Board Audit confidence, Committee at 
muhammad.azam@aghasteel.com.pk 

Confidentiality and Protection Mechanism

The policy assures that all complaints will be handled in complete and that the identity of the 
complainant will not be revealed to the management. In the unlikely event that the identity of whistle 
blower is revealed to any person in the company, it will be ensured that the complainant is not 
subjected to any form of detrimental treatment.

Success of the Policy and its Implementation. All stakeholders are responsible for the success of this 
policy and should ensure that they use it to disclose suspected danger or wrongdoing. If a stakeholder 
has any question about the content or application of this policy, he or she may contact the Internal 
Audit Department for obtaining necessary clarification.

This is an abridged version of the Whistle Blowing Policy.
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Diversity Policy
The Company is committed to fostering, cultivating and preserving a culture of diversity and inclusion. 
Our human capital is the most valuable asset we have. The collective sum of the individual differences, 
life experiences, knowledge, inventiveness, innovation, self-expression, unique capabilities and talent 
that our employees invest in their work represents a significant part of not only our culture, but our 
reputation and Company’s achievement as well.

We embrace and encourage our employees’ differences in age, color, disability, ethnicity, family or 
marital status, gender identity or expression, language, national origin, physical and mental ability, 
political affiliation, race, religion, socio-economic status, veteran status, and other characteristics that 
make our employees unique. Agha Steel Industries Limited’s ‘diversity initiatives are applicable but not 
limited to our practices and policies on recruitment and selection; compensation and benefits; 
professional development and training; promotions; transfers; social and recreational programs; layoffs; 
terminations; and the ongoing development of a work environment built on the premise of gender and 
diversity equity that encourages and enforces:

•  Respectful communication and cooperation between all employees.

•  Teamwork and employee participation, permitting the representation of all groups and employee 
perspectives.

•  Employer and employee contributions to the communities we serve to promote a greater under-
standing and respect for the diversity.

All employees of Agha Steel Industries Limited have a responsibility to treat others with dignity and 
respect at all times. All employees are expected to exhibit conduct that reflects inclusion during work, 
at work functions on or off the work site, and at all other company-sponsored and participative events. 
Any employee found to have exhibited any inappropriate conduct or behavior against others may be 
subject to disciplinary action.

Insider Trading Policy
The Company has taken definitive steps in ensuring that all employees, officers, members of the Board 
and all such relevant persons follow strict guidelines while trading in the shares of the Company. The 
Insider Trading Policy codifies the Company’s standards on trading and enabling the trading of 
securities of the Company or other publicly-traded companies while in possession of material 
non-public information.

The general guidelines within the policy state that:

1. No trading in the securities of the Company is permitted for directors and all employees who are 
“Executives” as defined in the relevant laws within the Closed Periods announced by the Company.

2.  No insider may purchase or sell any Company’s security while in possession of material non-public 
information about the Company, its customers, suppliers, consultants or other companies with 
which the Company has contractual relationships or may be negotiating transactions. 

3.  No insider who knows of any material non-public information about the Company may 
communicate that information to any other person, including family and friends.

4.  In addition, no insider may purchase or sell any security of any other company, whether or not 
issued by the Company, while in possession of material non-public information about that company 
that was obtained in the course of his or her involvement with the Company in the way of 
conducting official business. No insider who knows of any such material non-public information 
may communicate that information to any other person, including family and friends.

The Company’s Responsibility to Disclose Inside Information

The Company’s responsibility, in case of inside information made known to a third party, shall be to 
ensure that in such case the knowledge is given full public disclosure or if such information still needs 
to be kept non-public then the Company must ensure that the third party, is placed under legal 
obligation to maintain confidentiality.

Investor Grievance Policy
The Company has an Investors’ Grievance Policy in place. Any complaint or observation received either 
directly by the Corporate Department or during General Meetings are addressed by the Company 
Secretary. The Shareholders are given the information as desired by them as per the law well in time. 
All the written complaints are replied in writing. Our share registrar is CDC Share Registrar Services 
Limited (CDCSRSL) which is leading name in the field. The Company has many loyal shareholders, 
which shows the trust of the shareholders in the management of the Company.

Conflict of Interest Policy
A Conflicts of Interest Policy has been developed by the Company to provide a framework for all 
directors of the Company (“Directors”) to disclose actual, potential or perceived conflicts of interest. The 
policy provides guidance on what constitutes a conflict of interest and how it will be managed and 
monitored by the Company.

The policy is applicable to Directors as the Company strongly believes that a Director owes certain 
fiduciary duties, including the duties of loyalty, diligence and confidentially to the Company which 
requires that the Directors act in good faith on behalf of the Company and to exercise his or her powers 
for stakeholders’ interests and not for their own or others interest.

Management of Conflict of Interest

The Company stands fully committed to the transparent disclosures, management and monitoring of 
actual potential or perceived conflicts of interest. All Directors under the policy are obligated and have a 
duty to avoid actual, potential or perceived conflicts of interest.

Any Director with personal interest, relationship or responsibility which conflicts with the interest of the 
Company or its shareholders shall excuse himself or herself from any discussions on the matter that 
would give rise to the conflict of interest and, if necessary, from the Board meeting, or applicable part 
thereof.
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Information Technology
Governance Policy
The Company has a well-conceived and Implemented IT Governance Policy which seeks to ensure that 
IT is aligned with AGHA’S organizational goals and strategies and delivers value to the organization. 
The policy is designed to promote effective, efficient, timely, and informed decision-making concerning 
AGHA’S IT investments and operations. Specifically the policy aims to establish the IT governance 
structure and its associated procedures, roles, and responsibilities, as a critical component of the 
overall IT Management (ITM) Framework, which guides the management, implementation, and 
monitoring of IT investments for AGHA Steel Industries Limited.

The Company’s IT Governance Policy is mainly charged with:

•  Establishing a shared vision of how information technology can add value to the organization;

• Establishing information technology goals, and the strategies for achieving those goals;

• Establishing principles and guidelines for making information technology decisions and managing 
initiatives;

•  Overseeing the management of institutional information technology initiatives;

• Establishing and communicating organizational information technology priorities;

•  Determining information technology priorities in resource allocation;

•  Establishing, amending and retiring, as necessary, organizational information technology and 
other technology related policies, and

•  Determining the distribution of responsibility between the IT Department and end users

2.  It is the Policy of the company to ensure that:

 a.  Information will be protected against unauthorized access.

 b.  Confidentiality of information will be assured by protection from unauthorized disclosure or               
intelligible interruption.

 c.  Integrity of information (its accuracy and completeness) will be maintained by protecting 
against unauthorized modification.

 d.  Regulatory and legislative requirements will be met, including record keeping, according to 
Information Security Management System standard.

 e.  Disaster Recovery Plans will be produced, maintained and tested, to ensure that information 
and vital services are available to Company when needed.

 f.  Information on security matters will be made available to all staff.

 g.  All breaches of information security, actual or suspected, will be reported to and investigated 
by the Information Security Officer / Internal Audit.

3.  Standards will be produced to support the policy. These standards will include regulations, 
guidelines and procedures covering matters such as (not limited to) data security, backup, virus 
control and passwords.

4.   Business requirements for the available of information and information system will be met. 

5.  The role and responsibility for managing information security will be assigned to a designated 
Information Security Officer / Internal Audit.

6.  The information Security Officer / Internal Audit will be responsible for maintaining the Policy and 
providing advice and guidance on its implementation.

7.  All managers are responsible for implementing the Policy within their business areas, and for 
adherence by their staff.

8.  It is responsibility of each employee to adhere to the Policy.

Safety of Records Policy

The Company is effectively implementing the policy to ensure the safety of records. All records must be 
retained for as long as they are required to meet legal, administrative, operational, and other 
requirements of the Company. The main purposes of the Company Policy are:

•  To ensure that the Company’s records are created, managed, retained, and disposed off in an 
effective and efficient manner;

•  To facilitate the efficient management of the Company’s records through the development of a 
coordinated Records Management Program;

•  To ensure preservation of the Company’s records of permanent value to support both protection of 
privacy and freedom of information services throughout the Company to promote collegiality and 
knowledge sharing;

•  Information will be held only as long as required and disposed off in accordance with the record 
retention policy and retention schedules; and

•  Records and information are owned by the Company, not by the individual or team.

Information Systems 
Security Policy
OBJECTIVE

The objective of Information Security is to ensure continuity of business of the company and to minimize 
business damage by preventing and limiting the impact of security incidents.

POLICY

1. The purpose of the Policy is to protect Company information assets from all threats, whether internal or 
external, deliberate or accidental. These assets relate to information stored and processed electronically.
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Terms of Reference
1) AUDIT COMMITTEE:

Following terms have been adopted from the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) 
Regulations, 2019:

a.  Determination of appropriate measures to safeguard the Company’s assets.
b.  Review of annual and interim financial statements of the Company, prior to their approval by the 

Board of Directors, focusing on:

 (i)  major judgmental areas;
 (ii)  significant adjustments resulting from the audit;
 (iii) going concern assumption;
 (iv)  any changes in accounting policies and practices;
 (v)  compliance with applicable accounting standards;
 (vi)  compliance with these regulations and other statutory and regulatory requirements; and
 (vii)  all related party transactions.

c.  Review of preliminary announcements of results prior to external communication and  publication.
d.  Facilitating the external audit and discussion with external auditors of major observations arising 

from interim and final audits and any matter that the auditors may wish to highlight (in  the 
absence of management, where necessary).

e.  Review of management letter issued by external auditors and management’s response thereto.
f.  Ensuring coordination between the internal and external auditors of the Company.
g.  Review of the scope and extent of internal audit, audit plan, reporting framework and  procedures 

and ensuring that the internal audit function has adequate resources and is  appropriately placed 
within the Company.

h.  Consideration of major findings of internal investigations of activities characterized by fraud, 
corruption and abuse of power and management’s response thereto.

i.  Ascertaining that the internal control systems including financial and operational controls, 
accounting systems for timely and appropriate recording of purchases and sales, receipts and  
payments, assets and liabilities and the reporting structure are adequate and effective.

j.  Review of the Company’s statement on internal control systems prior to endorsement by the 
Board of Directors and internal audit reports.

k.  Instituting special projects, value for money studies or other investigations on any matter 
specified by the Board of Directors, in consultation with the Chief Executive Officer and to 
consider remittance of any matter to the external auditors or to any other external body.

l. Determination of compliance with relevant statutory requirements.
m.  Monitoring compliance with the Regulations and identification of significant violations thereof.
n.  Review of arrangement for staff and management to report to Audit Committee in confidence, 

concerns, if any, about actual or potential improprieties in financial and other matters and 
recommend instituting remedial and mitigating measures.

o.  Recommend to the Board of Directors the appointment of external auditors, their removal,  audit 
fees, the provision of any service permissible to be rendered to the Company by the  external 
auditors in addition to audit of its financial statements. The Board of Directors shall give due 
consideration to the recommendations of Audit Committee and where it acts otherwise it shall 
record the reasons thereof.

p.  consideration of any other issue or matter as may be assigned by the Board of Directors.

2) HUMAN RESOURCE AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (HR & RC)

HR&RC has been delegated the role of assisting the Board of Directors in following matters:

a.  Recommendation to the Board for consideration and approval a policy framework for determining 
remuneration of directors (both executive and non-executive directors);

b.  Undertaking, annually, a formal process of evaluation of performance of the Board as a whole and 
its committees either directly or by engaging external independent consultant.

c.  Recommendation to the Board the selection, evaluation, compensation (including retirement 
Benefits) and Succession Planning of the Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer;

d.  Recommendation for Human Resource Management policies to the Board; 
e.  Recommendation to the Board the selection, evaluation, development, compensation (including 

retirement benefits) of Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary and Chief Internal Audit or  as 
well as all General Managers and above; and 

f.  Consideration and approval on recommendations of Chairman & Chief Executive Officer on such 
matters relating to Steel Leadership Team.

3) RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The Board of Directors of the Company have determined the following terms of references of the Audit 
Committee. The Board shall provide adequate resources and authority to enable the Audit Committee 
carry out its responsibilities effectively. 

a. Advise the Board in relation to its determination of overall risk appetite, tolerance and strategy, 
taking account of the Company’s values and public interest purpose, as well as the current and 
prospective regulatory, macroeconomic, technological, environmental and social developments 
and trends that may be relevant for the Company’s risk policies;

b. Oversee and advise the Board on the current risk exposures of the Company, appropriate 
determination of risk appetite and future risk strategy, as regards the following families of risk: 
strategic, operational, financial and compliance, conduct and reputational risks;

c. Consider and review the prevailing risk culture in the company (values, beliefs, knowledge, 
attitudes and understanding about risk) and maintain oversight of relevant work streams and 
projects to bring about the desired risk culture;

d. Review the Company’s capability to identify and manage new risk types;

e. Review the integration of risk management and control objectives (and consequences) in the 
compensation structure;

f. Oversee the development, maintenance and implementation of appropriate policies and approve 
or recommend for approval such policies to the Board;

g. Review reports on any material breaches of risk limits and the adequacy of proposed action;

h. Consider and periodically report to the Board on the Group’s risk culture demonstrated through 
observed behaviors and decisions, the control environment and achievement of agreed risk 
outcomes;

i. Review and approve the statements to be included in the annual report concerning risk 
management;

j.  Overseeing risk appetite and risk tolerance appropriate to each business area;

k.  Annually review and approve the Executive Committee’s objectives, goals and     remuneration in 
relation to risk management.
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Financial Ratios Graphical Presentation

Profitability ratios
Gross Margin
Operating Margin
Pre tax Margin
Net Margin
Return on equity before tax
Return on equity after tax
Return on Assets before tax
Return on Assets after tax
Return on Capital employed before tax
Return on Capital employed after tax
Ebtida to sales

Liquidity Ratio

Current Ration
Quick ratio
Cash flow from Operation to sales

Investment/ Market  Ratio

EPS

Activity Turnover ratio

Inventory turnover ratio
Inventory held 
Debtor turnover days
Receivable days
Total asset Turnover ratio
Fixed asset Turnover ratio

Capital Structure Ratio

Long term Debt to Equity
Long term Debt to Assets
Gearing Ratio
Cost of Debt
Debt to equity
Interest Cover ratio
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FY 2022

23%
5%
6%
4%
7%

-25%
3%
2%
5%
4%

23%

1.04
0.48
0.13

1.5

 1.39 
 263 
 4.88 

 75 
58%
57%

50%
20%
58%
14%
1.34
1.51

FY 2023

23%
13%
13%
10%
31%
25%
9%
7%

18%
15%
21%

1.28
0.47
0.04

3.62

 1.80 
 203 

 7 
 53 

61%
73%

48%
19%
58%
8%

1.27
2.9933

FY 2021

25%
9%

10%
9%

22%
20%
6%
5%

11%
10%
23%

1.08
0.35

-0.0027

2.96

 1.22 
 298.12 

 2.24 
 163.02 

49%
88%

69%
19%
71%
10%
2.16

1.8162

FY 2020

19%
5%
6%
4%

11%
14%
3%
4%
7%
8%

19%

 1.20 
 0.40 

 (0.19)

 2.13 

 1.31 
 278.63 

 3.34 
 109.27 

12%
89%

93%
24%
69%
7%

 2.58 
 1.80 

FY 2019 2023 2023 2022 2022

 
 21,277,380 

 42,390 
 449,463 

 2,360,897 
 10,439,863 

 4,948,795 
 1,815,346 

 17,632 
 540,924 

 87,295 
 41,979,985 

 15,665,554 
 6,570,539 

 19,241,193 
 41,477,286 

 

51%
0%
1%
6%

25%
12%

4%
0%
1%
0%

100%

38%
16%
46%

100%

 
19,149,088 

 48,670 
 477,311 

 2,054,803 
 12,299,705 

 5,271,889 
 1,439,288 

 21,227 
 500,242 
 215,063 

 41,477,286 

 15,665,554 
 6,570,539 

 19,241,193 
 41,477,286 

46%
0%
1%
5%

30%
13%

3%
0%
1%
1%

100%

38%
16%
46%

100%

Total Assets
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible asset
Long term deposits and receivable
Stores, spares parts and loose tools
Stock-in-trade
Trade and other receivables 
Loans and advances
Deposits
Tax refunds due from Government
Cash and bank balances
Total Assets

Equities and liabilities
Share Capital & Reserves
Non Current liabilities
Current liabilities
Total Equity and Laibilities

2021 2021

 
17,066,357 

 54,950 
 507,759 

 1,726,320 
 9,505,307 
 4,047,003 
 1,156,155 

 41,928 
 471,731 
 833,205 

 35,410,715 

 13,810,784 
 7,711,069 

 13,888,862 
 35,410,715 

48%
0%
1%
5%

27%
11%

3%
0%
1%
2%

100%

39%
22%
39%

100%

2020 2020

 13,825,569 
 61,230 

 539,972 
 1,846,521 
 8,627,400 
 3,839,963 

 593,644 
 38,337 

 517,046 
 68,366 

 29,958,048 

 8,160,062 
 7,477,814 

 14,320,172 
 29,958,048 

46%
0%
2%
6%

29%
13%
2%
0%
2%
0%

100%

27%
25%
48%

100%

51%

0%1%6%

25%

12%
4% 0%

1%
0%

2023

Total Assets
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible asset
Long term deposits and
receivable

Stores, spares parts and loose
tools
Stock-in-trade
Trade and other receivables
Loans and advances

2022

Total Assets
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible asset
Long term deposits and
receivable

Stores, spares parts and loose
tools
Stock-in-trade
Trade and other receivables
Loans and advances

2021

Total Assets
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible asset
Long term deposits and
receivable

Stores, spares parts and loose
tools
Stock-in-trade
Trade and other receivables
Loans and advances

2020

2023 2022 2021 2020

Total Assets
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible asset
Long term deposits and
receivable

Stores, spares parts and loose
tools
Stock-in-trade
Trade and other receivables
Loans and advances

38%

16%

46%

Share Capital & Reserves
Non Current liabili�es
Current liabili�es

38%

16%

46%

Share Capital & Reserves
Non Current liabili�es
Current liabili�es

Share Capital & Reserves
Non Current liabili�es
Current liabili�es

48%

0%2%
5%

27%

12% 3% 0%

1%
2%

46%

0%
2%6%

29%

13% 2%
0% 2%

0%

46%

0%1%5%

30%

13% 3%

0% 1%

1%

39%

22%

39%
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Financial Position
FY 2023 FY 2022 FY 2021 FY 2020 FY 2019

Property, plant and equipment 21,277,380            19,149,088            17,066,357        13,825,569     10,374,109     
Intangible asset 42,390                   48,670                   54,950                61,230             59,330             
Long term deposits and receivable 449,463                 477,311                 507,759             539,972          605,202          
Current Assets 20,210,752            21,802,217            17,781,649        15,531,277     13,468,623     
Total Assets 41,979,985            41,477,286            35,410,715        29,958,048     24,507,264     

Finance By
Shareholders' Equity 16,570,450            15,665,554            13,810,784        8,160,062       6,182,132       
Deferred  liabilities 1,063,819              1,057,122              968,745             2,486,392       723,567          
Long Term Financing 4,723,940              5,402,833              6,631,523          4,944,318       6,323,429       
Lease liabilities 108,721                 110,584                 109,434             47,104             54,381             
Deferred Grant Income -                          -                          1,367                  -                   
Current Liabilities 19,513,055            19,241,193            13,888,862        14,320,172     11,223,755     

Total Funds Invested 41,979,985            41,477,286            35,410,715        29,958,048     24,507,264     
TRUE TRUE TRUE TRUE TRUE

Turnover & Profit
Sales Revenue 24,160,372          30,008,098          23,234,144       15,710,054    10,482,191     
Sales Tax (3,578,167)           (4,360,151)           (3,375,901)       (2,283,470)     -                   
Sales Revenue 20,582,205          25,647,947          19,858,243       13,426,584    10,482,191    
Gross Profit 4,820,013              5,490,289              4,502,519          3,396,752       2,031,125       
Operating Profit 980,542                 2,666,177              2,511,373          1,211,139       564,948          
Profit Before Tax 1,168,303              2,288,369              2,553,391          1,389,594       606,844          
Profit after tax 904,896                 1,854,770              2,035,997          1,235,592       768,733          
Total Comprehensive income 904,896                 1,854,770              2,035,997          1,235,592       768,733          
Earning Per Share 1.50                        3.07                        3.62                    2.96                 2.13                 

Cash Flow Summary

Cash flow from Operating activities 2,665,442              (1,803,774)            761,440             (36,787)           (1,962,455)      
Cash flow from Investing activities (2,549,598)            (2,468,507)            (3,557,306)         (1,778,428)      (2,096,760)      
Cash flow from Financing activities (243,612)                3,654,139              3,560,705          1,640,910       4,268,149       
Increase / (decrease in cash & cash Equivalents) (127,768)                (618,142)                764,839             (174,305)         208,934          
Cash& Bank at beginning of the year 215,063                 833,205                 68,366                242,671          33,737             
Cash& Bank at end of the year 87,295                   215,063                 833,205             68,366             242,671          

ANALYSIS OF STATEMENT OF FINACIAL POSITION
Vertical analysis %
Share Capital & Reserves 39% 38% 39% 27% 25%
Non Current liabilities 14% 16% 22% 25% 29%
Current liabilities 46% 46% 39% 48% 46%
Total Equity and Laibilities 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%

Non Current Assets 52% 47% 50% 48% 45%
Current Assets 48% 53% 50% 52% 55%
Total Assets 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%

Horizantal Analysis (i) Cumulative
Share Capital & Reserves 206% 189% 155% 51% 14%
Non Current liabilities 10% 10% 0% 158% -25%
Current liabilities 26% 44% 76% 31% 68%
Total Equity and Laibilities

Non Current Assets 236% 213% 191% 156% 119%
Current Assets 98% 114% 75% 53% 32%
Total Assets 216% 214% 182% 154% 126%

Horizantal Analysis (ii) Year On Year Basis
Share Capital & Reserves 6% 13% 69% 32% 14%
Non Current liabilities 1% 9% -61% 244% -25%
Current liabilities -13% -19% 34% -22% 68%
Total Equity and Laibilities -2% 1% 132% -13% -23%

Non Current Assets 11% 12% 22% 31% 19%
Current Assets -7% 22% 14% 14% 30%
Total Assets -2% 19% 17% 19% 27%

FY 2023 FY 2022 FY 2021 FY 2020 FY 2019
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RETURN ON EQUITY

Year Net Margin  Equity Multiplier Return on Equity

FY 2019
FY 2020
FY 2021
FY 2022
FY 2023

A

4%
9%

10%
7%
4%

Total assets
urnover

B

12%
49%
61%
67%
58%

C= A*B

0.477%
4.437%
6.097%
4.670%
2.530%

 D
 
  3.79 
 1.90 
 2.56 
 2.61 
 2.53 

 

E= C*D

2%
8%

16%
12%

6%

Return Assets
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Return on Equity E= C*D

FY 2023 FY 2022 FY 2021 FY 2020 FY 2019
Analysis of Profit & loss Account

Turnover - net 20,582,205 25,647,947          19,858,243          13,426,584          10,482,191         
Cost of sales (15,762,192) (20,157,658)         (15,355,724)         (10,029,832)         (8,451,066)         
Gross profit 4,820,013 5,490,289            4,502,519            3,396,752            2,031,125           
Administrative expenses (310,906) (334,601)              (296,737)              (269,648)              (208,041)             
Selling and distribution costs (319,830) (353,682)              (285,429)              (213,445)              (123,561)             
Finance costs (3,208,735) (2,135,829)           (1,408,980)           (1,702,520)           (1,134,575)         
Operating profit 980,542 2,666,177            2,511,373            1,211,139            564,948              
Other expenses (163,315) (681,044)              (197,369)              (114,553)              (34,702)               
Other income 351,076 303,236                239,387                293,008                76,598                
Profit before taxation 1,168,303 2,288,369            2,553,391            1,389,594            606,844              
Taxation - net (263,407) (433,599)              (517,394)              (154,002)              161,889              
Profit after taxation 904,896 1,854,770            2,035,997            1,235,592            768,733              
Other comprehensive income - -                        -                        -                        -                       
Total comprehensive income 904,896 4,424,531            2,035,997            1,235,592            768,733              

Vertical Analysis
Turnover - net 100 100                       100                       100                       100                      
Cost of sales (77) (79)                        (77)                        (75)                        (81)                       
Gross profit 23 21                          23                          25                          19                        
Administrative expenses (2) (1)                          (1)                          (2)                          (2)                         
Selling and distribution costs (2) (1)                          (1)                          (2)                          (1)                         
Finance costs (16) (8)                          (7)                          (13)                        (11)                       
Operating profit 5 10                          13                          9                            5                          
Other expenses (1) (3)                          (1)                          (1)                          (0)                         
Other income 2 1                            1                            2                            1                          
Profit before taxation 6 9                            13                          10                          6                          
Taxation - net (1) (2)                          (3)                          (1)                          2                          
Profit after taxation 4 7                            10                          9                            7                          
Other comprehensive income - -                        -                        -                        -                       
Total comprehensive income 4 7                            10                          9                            7                          

Horizantal Analysis (i) Cumulative
Turnover - net 93% 140% 86% 26% -2%
Cost of sales -247% 152% 92% 25% 6%
Gross profit -55% 104% 67% 26% -25%
Administrative expenses -103% 86% 65% 50% 16%
Selling and distribution costs -103% 62% 31% -2% -43%
Finance costs -130% 410% 236% 306% 171%
Operating profit -91% 42% 34% -35% -70%
Other expenses -102% 365% 35% -22% -76%
Other income -97% 821% 627% 790% 133%
Profit before taxation -89% 30% 45% -21% -66%
Taxation - net -102% 41% 69% -50% -153%
Profit after taxation -92% 27% 40% -15% -47%
Other comprehensive income -100% -100% -100% -100% -100%
Total comprehensive income -92% 156% 18% -28% -55%

Horizantal Analysis (ii) Year On Year Basis
Turnover - net -20% 29% 48% 28% -2%
Cost of sales -22% 31% 53% 19% 6%
Gross profit -12% 22% 33% 67% -25%
Administrative expenses -7% 13% 10% 30% 16%
Selling and distribution costs -10% 24% 34% 73% -43%
Finance costs 50% 52% -17% 50% 171%
Operating profit -63% 6% 107% 114% -70%
Other expenses -76% 245% 72% 230% -76%
Other income 16% 27% -18% 283% 133%
Profit before taxation -49% -10% 84% 129% -66%
Taxation - net -39% -16% 236% -195% -153%
Profit after taxation -51% -9% 65% 61% -47%
Other comprehensive income 0% 0% 0% 0% -100%
Total comprehensive income -80% 117% 65% 61% -55%
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Gross Margin Return on equity before tax %
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Pattern of Shareholding
As At June 30, 2023

 No  of Shareholders Share holding  Total Shares Held

334
444

1310
2558
544
230
132
88
61
41
25
25
18
34
12
13
11
14
12
4
3
6

11
13
3
5
3
3
3
4
2
4
3
2
2
1
2
2
2
2
4
4
3
1
2

1
101
501

1001
5001

10001
15001
20001
25001
30001
35001
40001
45001
50001
55001
60001
65001
70001
75001
80001
85001
90001
95001

100001
105001
110001
115001
125001
130001
135001
140001
145001
150001
155001
160001
170001
175001
180001
185001
190001
195001
200001
205001
210001
215001

to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to

100
500

1000
5000

10000
15000
20000
25000
30000
35000
40000
45000
50000
55000
60000
65000
70000
75000
80000
85000
90000
95000

100000
105000
110000
115000
120000
130000
135000
140000
145000
150000
155000
160000
165000
175000
180000
185000
190000
195000
200000
205000
210000
215000
220000

12,950
175,576
814,640

5,442,938
3,882,617
2,751,428
2,299,130
1,952,546
1,690,711
1,315,643

952,270
1,077,735

883,946
1,786,643

691,254
811,340
744,497

1,023,575
947,382
333,050
259,356
564,100

1,087,050
1,360,000

322,000
564,799
350,809
385,925
396,250
551,675
282,450
596,000
460,435
314,718
325,850
172,075
354,500
366,250
379,471
385,800
799,500
813,718
627,900
213,669
440,000

Annual Report 202395 Agha Steel Industries Ltd. 96

Pattern of Shareholding

Categories Of Shareholders Shares Held PercentageShareholders

Directors and their spouse(s) and minor children
SAAD IQBAL
HUSSAIN IQBAL AGHA
SHAZIA IQBAL AGHA
RAZA IQBAL AGHA
SAKEEN IQBAL AGHA
MUHAMMAD ASIF

Associated Companies, undertakings and related 
parties

NIT and ICP

Banks Development Financial Institutions, 
Non-Banking Financial Institutions

Insurance Companies

Modarabas and Mutual Funds

General Public
 
                       a. Local
                       b. Foreign
Foreign Companies
Others

Totals
 

HUSSAIN IQBAL AGHA
RAZA IQBAL AGHA

 1 
 1 
 1 
 1 
 1 
 1 

 
-   

 -   

 3 

 8 

 13 

 
5,420 
 204 

 -   
 57

 
 5,711 

 52,422,852  
155,552,057 
 18,856,625  
147,201,502 

 525,000 
 56,194 

 -   

 -   

 17,209,900 

 30,333,575 

 3,196,378 

 
167,745,677 

 1,837,027 
 -   

 9,942,271
 

 604,879,058 

 8.67 
 25.72 
 3.12 

 24.34 
 0.09 
 0.01 

 -   

 -   

 2.85 

 5.01 

 0.53 

 27.73 
 0.30 

 -   
 1.64

 
100.00

Share Holders Holding 10% Or More Shares Held Percentage

 55,552,057 
 47,201,502 

 25.72 
 24.34 

As At June 30, 2023



Pattern of Shareholding
As At June 30, 2023

 No  of Shareholders Share holding  Total Shares Held

1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
2

 6,063 

2400001
2665001
3785001
4195001
4735001
5040001
5285001
9490001

10070001
13175001
25965001

112250001
168490001

to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to

2405000
2670000
3790000
4200000
4740000
5045000
5290000
9495000

10075000
13180000
25970000

112255000
168495000

2,404,500
2,667,000
3,788,000
4,200,000
4,737,500
5,041,950
5,290,000
9,490,500

10,071,400
13,180,000
25,969,731

112,251,894
336,982,114

 604,879,058 

Pattern of Shareholding
As At June 30, 2023

 No  of Shareholders Share holding  Total Shares Held

3
1
2
2
1
1
2
2
1
1
1
1
1
1
2
1
1
2
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1

225001
230001
235001
245001
250001
255001
260001
265001
270001
280001
295001
340001
355001
360001
365001
375001
385001
395001
415001
435001
455001
465001
495001
520001
545001
565001
610001
615001
635001
695001
705001
710001
735001
740001
785001
820001
935001

1495001
1610001
1715001
2395001

to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to

230000
235000
240000
250000
255000
260000
265000
270000
275000
285000
300000
345000
360000
365000
370000
380000
390000
400000
420000
440000
460000
470000
500000
525000
550000
570000
615000
620000
640000
700000
710000
715000
740000
745000
790000
825000
940000

1500000
1615000
1720000
2400000

685,000
231,000
475,884
499,000
251,000
257,500
525,000
533,900
274,000
283,500
300,000
341,250
360,000
364,500
734,557
378,271
387,700
795,325
420,000
437,050
455,300
465,650
500,000
525,000
549,375
567,000
615,000
619,625
636,363
700,000
705,600
714,000
738,350
740,775
786,823
822,150
939,550

1,500,000
1,612,000
1,718,250
2,395,050
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Statement of Compliance with 
Listed Companies (Code of Corporate 
Governance) Regulations, 2019 (The 
Regulations)

**Changes in Board of Directors

Agha Steel Industries Limited (the Company) has complied with the requirements of the Regulations in 
the following manner:

1. 1. The total number of Directors are seven as per the following:

 a. Male:  06
 b. Female:  01

2. The composition of the Board of Directors (the Board) and the meeting attended by them is as 
follows:

Name of Company: Agha Steel Industries Limited
Year ended:  June 30, 2023

*Best practices of code of corporate governance requires that the Company’s Executive Directors shall 
not be more than one third (2.3) of its total Directors (7). However, the fraction (2.3) has been rounded 
up to three because the Company has elected three Executive Directors so that they can manage the 
daily affairs of the Company, play an effective part within the Board and make valuable contributions.

Category Names

Independent / Non-Executive Directors

Other Non-Executive Directors

Executive Directors

Mr. Akbar Pesnani
Mr. Askari Asghar Agha
Mr. Muhammad Asif*

Mrs. Shazia Iqbal Agha (Female Director)

Mr. Hussain Iqbal Agha
Mr. Raza Iqbal Agha
Mr. Saad Iqbal**

Names of Outgoing Director Names of Incoming Director

Mr. Amir Nazim Haji
Resigned w.e.f. 28th March 2023

Mr. Saad Iqbal
w.e.f. 28th March, 2023

3. The Directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than seven listed 
companies, including this Company;

4. The Company has prepared a “Code of Conduct” and has ensured that appropriate steps have 
been taken to disseminate it throughout the Company along with its supporting policies and 
procedures;
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5. The Board has developed a vision / mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant 
policies of the Company. A complete record of particulars of the significant policies along with their 
date on which they were approved or amended has been maintained;

6. All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have been 
taken by the Board / shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 
2017 (“the Act”) and these Regulations;

7. The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairperson and, in his absence, by a direc-
tor elected by the Board for this purpose. The Board has complied with the requirements of the Act 
and the Regulations with respect to frequency, recording and circulating minutes of meeting of 
Board;

8. The Board have a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of Directors in accor-
dance with the Act and these Regulations;

9. Six directors on the Board have acquired the prescribed certification as mentioned under Regula-
tion Number 19. The Company is currently in the process of organizing the Directors’ Training 
Program certification for the remaining director. Following Directors have already gone through 
Directors’ Training program:

 1. Mr. Akbar Pesnani
 2. Mr. Askari Asghar Agha
 3. Mr. Muhammad Asif
 4. Mr. Hussain Iqbal Agha
 5. Mr. Raza Iqbal Agha
 6. Mr. Saad Iqbal

10. The Board has approved appointment of Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary and the head 
of internal audit, including their remuneration and terms and conditions of employment and 
complied with relevant requirements of the Regulations;

11. Chief Financial Officer and Chief Executive Officer (CEO) duly endorsed the financial statements 
before approval of the Board;

12. The Board had formed committees comprising of members given below:

15. The Board has set up an effective internal audit function who are considered suitably qualified and 
experienced for the purpose and are conversant with the policies and procedures of the company;

16. The statutory auditors of the Company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory 
rating under the quality control review program of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Paki-
stan (ICAP) and registered with Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they and all their partners 
are in compliance with International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics 
as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and that they and the partners 
of the firm involved in the audit are not close relative (spouse, parent, dependent and non-depen-
dent children) of the Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Head of Internal Audit, Com-
pany Secretary or Director of the Company;

17. The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide 
other services except in accordance with the Act, these Regulations or any other regulatory 
requirement and the auditors have confirmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this 
regard;

18. We confirm that all requirements of regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27, 32, 33 and 36 of the Regulations 
have been complied with.

  On Behalf of the Board,

            Chairperson           

  Dated: 25th September, 2023

13. The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented, and advised 
to the committees for compliance;

14. The frequency of meetings of the Committees were as per following:

Name of Committee Frequency of Meetings

Audit Committee

HR and Remuneration Committee

Risk Management Committee

Quarterly

Annual

Half yearly

Name of Committee Designation

Audit Committee

HR and Remuneration 
Committee

Risk Management 
Committee

Mr. Askari Asghar Agha
Ms. Shazia Iqbal Agha
Mr. Muhammad Asif
Mr. Akbar Pesnani
Ms. Shazia Iqbal Agha
Mr. Raza Iqbal Agha
Mr. Akbar Pesnani
Mr. Shazia Iqbal agha
Mr. Askari Asghar Agha
Mr. Hussain Iqbal Agha

Chairman
Member
Member
Chairman
Member
Member
Chairman
Member
Member
Member

Name
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT JUNE 30, 2023

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Chief Executive Chief Financial Officer DirectorChief Executive Chief Financial Officer Director

 2023  2022 
Note  - - - - Rupees in '000'- - - - 

ASSETS

Non-Current Assets
Property, plant and equipment 5  21,277,380  19,149,088 
Intangible asset 6  42,390  48,670 
Long term deposits and receivable 7  449,463  477,311 

 21,769,233  19,675,069 
Current Assets

Stores, spare parts and loose tools  2,360,897  2,054,803 
Stock-in-trade 8  10,439,863  12,299,705 
Trade and other receivables 9  4,948,795  5,271,889 
Loans and advances 10  1,815,346  1,439,288 
Deposits 11  17,632  21,227 
Tax refunds due from Government 12  540,924  500,242 
Cash and bank balances 13  87,295  215,063 

 20,210,752  21,802,217 
Total Assets  41,979,985  41,477,286 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Share Capital and Reserves
Authorized Capital 14  6,250,000  6,250,000 

Share Capital 
Issued, subscribed and paid up capital 14  6,048,791  6,048,791 

Capital reserve 15  2,126,687  2,126,687 
Revenue Reserve
Unappropriated profit  8,394,972  7,490,076 

Total Shareholders' Equity  16,570,450  15,665,554 

Non-Current Liabilities
Long term borrowings 16  4,223,940  5,402,833 
Advance against preference shares 17  500,000  -   
Lease liabilities 18  108,721  110,584 
Deferred liability 19  1,063,819  1,057,122 

 5,896,480  6,570,539 
Current Liabilities

Trade and other payables 20  829,386  1,128,740 
Accrued markup  807,704  672,265 
Short term borrowings 21  13,728,859  14,045,946 
Current portion of non-current liabilities 22  4,147,106  3,394,242 

 19,513,055  19,241,193 
Contingencies and Commitments 23
Total Capital and Liabilities  41,979,985  41,477,286 

The annexed notes from 1 to 42 form an integral part of these financial statements.

 2023  2022 
 Note  - - - - Rupees in '000'- - - - 

Turnover - gross 24  24,160,372  30,008,098 
Sales tax  (3,578,167)  (4,360,151)
Turnover - net  20,582,205  25,647,947 

Cost of sales 25  (15,762,192)  (20,157,658)
Gross profit  4,820,013  5,490,289 

Administrative expenses 26  (310,906)  (334,601)

Selling and distribution costs 27  (319,830)  (353,682)

Finance costs 28  (3,208,735)  (2,135,829)
 (3,839,471)  (2,824,112)

Operating profit  980,542  2,666,177 

Other expenses 29  (163,315)  (681,044)

Other income 30  351,076  303,236 
Profit before taxation  1,168,303  2,288,369 

Taxation - net 31  (263,407)  (433,599)

Profit after taxation  904,896  1,854,770 

Other comprehensive income for the year  -    -   

Total comprehensive income for the year  904,896  1,854,770 

Earnings per share

Basic and diluted - Rupees  1.50  3.07 

The annexed notes from 1 to 42 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Chief Executive Chief Financial Officer Director Chief Executive Chief Financial Officer Director

 2023  2022 
A. CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES Note  - - - - Rupees in '000'- - - - 

Profit before taxation  1,168,303  2,288,369 
Adjustments for: 

Depreciation 5.1  451,578  425,023 
Amortization 26  6,280  6,280 
Allowance for expected credit losses 9.1  83,083  209,682 
Finance cost 28  3,198,708  2,125,203 
Finance lease markup 28  10,027  10,626 
Workers welfare fund 29  61,821  28,262 
Workers profit participation fund 29  6,297  121,928 
Gain on disposal of fixed assets - net 30  (2,424)  (8,799)
Amortization of government grant 30  (1,367)  (9,612)
Exchange loss - net 29  12,114  293,197 

Cash generated from operations before working capital changes  4,994,420  5,490,159 

Changes in working capital 
(Increase) / decrease in current assets 
Stores, spare parts and loose tools  (306,094)  (328,483)
Stock-in-trade  1,859,842  (2,794,398)
Trade and other receivables  240,011  (1,434,568)
Loans and advances  (376,058)  (283,133)
Deposits  3,595  20,701 

 1,421,296  (4,819,881)
(Decrease) / increase in current liabilities 
Trade and other payables  (237,466)  (255,836)

Net cash generated from operations  6,178,250  414,442 

Short term lease payments  (2,578)  (2,940)
Taxes paid 12.1  (369,634)  (373,733)
Workers' Profits Participation Fund paid 20.3  (67,300)  (66,985)
Financial charges paid  (3,073,296)  (1,784,170)

Net cash generated from / (used in) operating activities  2,665,442  (1,813,386)

B. CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

Long term deposits and receivable recovered - net  27,848  30,448 
Additions in capital work in progress - net 5.3.1  (2,444,535)  (2,211,433)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 5.2  7,684  16,343 
Additions in property, plant and equipment 5.1  (140,595)  (303,865)

Net cash used in investing activities  (2,549,598)  (2,468,507)

Particulars

 Issued,
subscribed
and paid up 

capital

Reserves
Total

reserves

 Total
shareholders’ 

equity

Capital Revenue
 *Share

Premium
**Unappropriated  

profit
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - Rupees in ‘000’ - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

Balance as at July 01, 2021  5,760,753  2,414,725  5,635,306  8,050,031  13,810,784 

Total comprehensive income for the year
Profit after taxation  -    -    1,854,770  1,854,770  1,854,770 

Other comprehensive income  -    -    -    -    -   
 -    -    1,854,770  1,854,770  1,854,770 

Transaction with the owners

Issuance of 5% bonus shares
for the year ended June 30, 2021  288,038  (288,038)  -    -    -   

Balance as at June 30, 2022  6,048,791  2,126,687  7,490,076  9,904,801  15,665,554 

Total comprehensive income for the year
Profit after taxation  -    -    904,896  904,896  904,896 

Other comprehensive income  -    -    -    -    -   
 -    -    904,896  904,896  904,896 

Balance as at 30 June, 2023  6,048,791  2,126,687  8,394,972  10,809,697  16,570,450 

* Share premium is held for utilization for purposes as stated in Section 81 of the Companies Act, 2017.

** Unappropriated profit can be utilized for meeting contingencies and distribution of profits by way of dividends.

The annexed notes from 1 to 42 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Chief Executive Chief Financial Officer Director

1 LEGAL STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS        
   
1.1 Agha Steel Industries Limited (the Company) was incorporated in Pakistan on November 19, 2013, as a private limited 

company under the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984, now the Companies Act, 2017 (the Act). On April 07, 2015, 
the Company was converted into public limited company. During the financial year 2019, the Company has listed its 
privately placed Sukuk certificates. The company is listed on Pakistan Stock Exchange on November 02, 2020. The 
Company is principally engaged in manufacturing and sale of steel bars, wire rods and billets, and its registered office 
and production plants are situated at plot no. N.W.I.Z. / 1 / P-133, (SP-6 & 6A), D-2, Port Qasim Authority, Karachi. 
         

1.2 The company has been listed on Pakistan Stock Exchange (PSX) on November 02, 2020 by offering 120,000,000 
ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each to the general public at the strike price of Rs. 32 per share including premium of Rs.22 
per share which resulted in IPO proceeds of Rs. 3,840 million.

          
1.3 The geographical location and addresses of business units are as under:

Location Address

Head Office and Factory Plot no. N.W.I.Z./1/P-133, (SP-6 & 6A) D-2 and E-1, Port Qasim
Authority, Karachi.

Corporate Office Plot no. G-19, Office # 801, 803 & 804, 8th Floor, Emerald Tower,
II Talwar, Block # 5, Clifton, Karachi.

Sales Offices Suit # 103 floor 6, Dawood Mart Autobahn Road, Latifabad,
Hyderabad.

Street No 10 Sector I-9/2 Opposite Star Weighbridge adjacent,
Hassan Steel Industrial Area, Islamabad.

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION         
          

2.1 Statement Of Compliance        
          
 These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable 

in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of International Financial Reporting 
Standards (IFRSs), issued by International Accounting Standard Board (IASB), as notified under the Act and, provisions 
of and directives issued under the Act. Where the provisions of and directives issued under the Act differ from the IFRSs, 
the provisions of and directives issued under the Act have been followed.  

          
2.2 Basis of measurement        
          
 These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention. Further, accrual basis of accounting 

is followed in preparation of these financial statements except for cash flow statement. 

2.3  Functional and presentation currency        
   

 The financial statements are presented in Pakistan Rupees, which is also the Company’s functional currency. 
          

 2023  2022 
Note  - - - - Rupees in '000'- - - - 

C. CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

(Repayments) / receipts of long-term borrowings - net  (430,288)  1,190,560 
Advance received against shares 17  500,000  -   
Leases obtained during the period - net 18  42,951  42,345 
Supplier credit paid  -    (1,749,477)
Lease rentals paid 18  (39,188)  (36,863)
(Repayments) / receipts of short-term borrowings - net  (317,087)  4,217,186 

Net cash (used in) / generated from financing activities  (243,612)  3,663,751 

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)  (127,768)  (618,142)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 13  215,063  833,205 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 13  87,295  215,063 

The annexed notes from 1 to 42 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

2.6  Amendments to standards and IFRS interpretations that are not yet effective 

 The following amendments to accounting standards and interpretations are only effective for accounting periods, 
beginning on or after the date mentioned against each of them. These standards, interpretations and amendments 
are either not relevant to the Company’s operations or are not expected to have significant impact on the Company’s 
financial statements other than certain additional disclosures:

Effective from accounting
period beginning on or after

Amendments to IFRS 10 ‘Consolidated Financial Statements’ and IAS 28 
‘Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures’: Sale or contribution of assets 
between an investor and its associate or joint venture.  

Effective from accounting period 
beginning on or after a date to be 
determined. Earlier application is 

permitted.

Amendments to IAS 1 ‘Presentation of Financial Statements’: Amendments 
regarding the disclosure of accounting policies.

January 1, 2023

Amendments to IFRS 16 ‘Leases’: Amendments to clarify how a seller-lessee 
subsequently measures sale and leaseback transactions.

January 1, 2024

Amendments to IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments: Disclosures' and IAS 7 'Statement of 
Cash Flows': Amendments regarding supplier finance arrangements.

January 1, 2024

Amendments to IAS 1 'Presentation of Financial Statements': Amendments 
regarding the classification of liabilities and debt with covenants.

January 1, 2024

Amendments to IAS 8 'Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and 
Errors': Amendments regarding the definition of accounting estimates.

January 1, 2023

Amendments to IAS 12 'Income Taxes': Amendments regarding deferred tax on 
leases and decommissioning obligations.

January 1, 2023

Amendments to IAS 12 'Income Taxes': Amendments to provide a temporary 
exception to the requirements regarding deferred tax assets and liabilities related to 
pillar two income taxes.

January 1, 2023

 Certain amendments updating a reference to the Conceptual Framework and annual improvements have also been 
made to a number of standards, which have not been enumerated here for brevity. 

       
 Other than the aforesaid standards, interpretations and amendments, the International Accounting Standards Board 

(IASB) has also issued the following standards which have not been adopted locally by the Securities and Exchange 
Commission of Pakistan:

IFRS 1  - First Time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards

IFRS 17 - Insurance Contracts

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES       
   

 The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are as 
follows: 

2.4  Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions    
       

 The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the accounting and reporting standards, as applicable in 
Pakistan, requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies 
and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are 
based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, 
the results of which form the basis of making the judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are 
not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates. 

          
 The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are 

recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised, if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the 
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.     
 

         
 The areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the Company’s financial statements or where judgment 

is exercised in application of accounting policies are as follows:

a) Property, plant and equipment - note 3.1 and 5;  
b) Intangible assets - note 3.2 and 6;  
c) Stores, spare parts and loose tools - note 3.5;   
d) Stock-in-trade - note 3.6 and 8;   
e) Recognition of financial instruments - note 3.4;   
f) Recognition of expected credit losses - note 3.4.5 , 9 and 3.7  
g) Tax refunds due from Government - note 3.10 and 12;   
h) Recognition of current tax and deferred tax - note 3.10 and 31;   
i) Accrued liabilities - note 3.12;   
j) Revenue recognition - note 3.16 and 24;  
k) Provision and estimation of contingent liability - note 3.14 and 23 .

 However, assumptions and judgments made by management in the application of accounting policies that have 
significant effect on the financial statements are not expected to result in material adjustment to the carrying amounts of 
assets and liabilities in the next year.

         
2.5  Standards, interpretations and amendments to accounting and reporting standards as 

applicable in Pakistan which are effective in current period   
         
 The following standards, amendments and interpretations are effective for the year ended June 30, 2023. These 

standards, interpretations and amendments are either not relevant to the Company’s operations or are not expected to 
have significant impact on the Company’s financial statements other than certain additional disclosures:  

Effective for period
 beginning on or after

Amendments to IAS 16 ‘Property, Plant and Equipment’: Amendments prohibiting a 
company from deducting from the cost of property, plant and equipment amounts received 
from selling items produced while the company is preparing the asset for its intended use.

January 1, 2022

Amendments to IAS 37 ‘Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets’: 
Amendments regarding the costs to include when assessing whether a contract is onerous.

January 1, 2022

    
 Certain amendments updating a reference to the Conceptual Framework and annual improvements have also been 

made to a number of standards, which have not been enumerated here for brevity. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

3.2 Intangible asset        
         
 Intangible assets acquired separately are initially recognized at cost. After initial recognition, these are measured at 

cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses. Costs associated with routine maintenance 
of intangible assets are recognized as an expense when incurred. However, costs that are directly attributable to 
identifiable intangible assets and which enhance or extend the performance of intangible assets beyond the original 
specification and useful life is recognized as capital improvement and added to the original cost of the software. 
        

 These are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses, if any. Amortisation is charged so as to 
allocate the cost of assets over their estimated useful lives, using straight line method at the rates disclosed in note 6 
to these financial statements. Amortization on additions to intangible assets is charged from the date when the asset is 
acquired or capitalized upto the date when the asset is de-recognized.  

         
3.3 Impairment of non-financial assets        

   
 The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that assets, other than deferred tax asset, 

may be impaired. If such indication exists, the carrying amounts of such assets are reviewed to assess whether they 
are recorded in excess of their recoverable amount. Where carrying values exceed the respective recoverable amount, 
assets are written down to their recoverable amounts and the resulting impairment loss is recognized in profit or loss. 
The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s ‘fair value less costs to sell’ and ‘value in use’.   
      

 When impairment loss is subsequently reversed, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised recoverable 
amount but limited to the extent of the carrying amount that would have been determined (net of amortization 
or depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognized. Reversal of impairment loss is recognized as income. 
 

         
3.4 Financial assets and liabilities        
         
3.4.1 Initial Recognition        

         
 All financial assets and liabilities are initially measured at cost which is the fair value of the consideration given or 

received. These are subsequently measured at fair value or amortized cost as the case may be.
         
3.4.2 Classification of financial assets        

  
 The Company classifies its financial instruments in the following categories:

- at amortized cost. 
- at fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”), or 
- at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”), 

 The Company determines the classification of financial assets at initial recognition. The classification of instruments 
(other than equity instruments) is driven by the Company’s business model for managing the financial assets and their 
contractual cash flow characteristics.

 Financial assets at amortized cost 
 Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at amortized cost: 

a)  the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect 
contractual cash flows and  

        

3.1 Property, plant and equipment        
         

a) Operating fixed assets        
         
 Owned assets        
 Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any, 

except for leasehold land which is stated at cost.       
  

 Depreciation is charged to profit or loss so as to write off the cost of assets (other than land) over their estimated 
useful lives, applying the reducing balance method at the rates specified in the note 5.1 to these financial 
statements. The Company charges the depreciation on additions from the date when the asset is available for use 
and on deletions up to the date when the asset is de-recognized.  

        
 Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, 

only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the 
cost of the item can be measured reliably. Normal repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss, as and 
when incurred.  

         
 An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized when disposed or when no future economic benefits are 

expected from the continued use of the asset. Gains or losses on disposal of assets, if any, are recognized in profit 
or loss, as and when incurred. 

 Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities       
 

 At the inception of the contract, the Company assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease based on 
whether the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for 
consideration.   

         
 Right-of-use assets are initially measured based on the initial amount of lease liabilities adjusted for any principle 

lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred. Right-of-use 
assets are depreciated on same basis as owned assets at the rates as disclosed in note 5.1 to these financial 
statements. 

         
 The related lease liabilities are initially measured at the present value of remaining lease payments at the 

commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease. The lease liabilities are subsequently 
measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method. They are remeasured when there is a change 
in future lease payments arising from a change in fixed lease payments or an index or rate, any change in the 
Company’s estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, or if the Company 
changes its estimate of whether it will exercise a purchase or termination option. The corresponding adjustment 
is made to the carrying amount of the respective right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying 
amount of that right-of-use has been reduced to zero. 

b) Capital work in progress        
         
 These are stated at cost less impairment loss (if any) and represent expenditure incurred and advances made in 

respect of assets in the course of their acquisition, construction and installation. These are transferred to relevant 
category of assets as and when they are available for use. 
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3.4.5 Impairment of financial assets at amortized cost      
    

 The Company recognizes a loss allowance for expected credit losses (ECLs) on financial assets that are measured 
at amortized cost. Loss allowances are measured on the basis of life time (ECLs) that result from all possible default 
events over the expected life of a financial instrument.       
   

 Lifetime ECL is only recognized if the credit risk at the reporting date has increased significantly relative to the credit risk 
at initial recognition. Credit risk on a financial asset is assumed to be increased significantly if it is more than past due for 
a reasonable period of time decided by the management of the Company. Further, the Company considers information 
based on Company’s historical experience and the impact of forward looking information that is available without undue 
cost. Credit losses are measured as the present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows 
due to the entity and the cash flows that the Company expects to receive). 

        
 Financial assets that are subject to ECL model includes long term receivable, deposits and trade and other 

receivables.      
         

 The Company recognizes an impairment gain or loss in the statement of profit or loss for all financial instruments with a 
corresponding adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss allowance account.    
   

         
3.4.6 Derecognition        
         
 Financial assets        
 The Company derecognizes financial assets only when the contractual rights to cash flows from the financial assets 

expire or when it transfers the financial assets and substantially all the associated risks and rewards of ownership to 
another entity.   

         
 On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortized cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying value and 

the sum of the consideration received and receivable is recognized in profit or loss.     
  

         
 In addition, on derecognition of an investment in a debt instrument classified as at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss 

previously accumulated in the investments revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or loss.   
  

         
 In contrast, on derecognition of an investment in equity instrument which the Company has elected on initial recognition 

to measure at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the investments revaluation reserve is not 
reclassified to profit or loss, but is transferred to revenue reserve.      
 

         
 Financial liabilities        
 The Company derecognizes financial liabilities only when its obligations under the financial liabilities are discharged, 

cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognized and the 
consideration paid and payable, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognized in the 
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.    

         
3.4.7 Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities      

    
 Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the financial statements only when 

there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amount and the Company intends either to settle on a 
net basis or to realize the assets and to settle the liabilities simultaneously.     
 

         

b)  the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of 
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

 Financial assets at fair value through OCI
 Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at FVTOCI:

a)  the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash 
flows and selling financial assets and

b)  the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of 
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

 However, Company may make an irrevocable election at initial recognition for particular investments in equity instruments 
that would otherwise be measured at fair value through profit or loss to present subsequent changes in fair value in other 
comprehensive income provided that the investment is neither held for trading nor is a contingent consideration in a 
business combination.        

 Financial assets at fair value through P&L 
 A financial asset is measured at fair value through P&L unless it is measured at amortized cost or at fair value through 

OCI. 

3.4.3 Financial liabilities       
        
 The Company classifies its financial liabilities in the following categories: 

- at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”), or 
- at amortized cost.       

        
 Financial liabilities are measured at amortized cost, unless they are required to be measured at FVTPL (such as 

instruments held for trading or derivatives) or the Company has opted to measure them at FVTPL. 

3.4.4 Subsequent measurement        
         
 Financial assets at FVTOCI        
 Elected investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are initially recognized at fair value plus transaction costs. 

Subsequently, they are measured at fair value, with gains or losses arising from changes in fair value recognized in 
OCI.  

         
 Financial assets and liabilities at amortized cost      

  
 Financial assets and liabilities at amortized cost are initially recognized at fair value plus or minus transaction costs, and 

subsequently carried at amortized cost, and in the case of financial assets, less any impairment.   
 

         
 Financial assets and liabilities at FVTPL       

 
 Financial assets and liabilities carried at FVTPL are initially recorded at fair value and transaction costs are expensed in 

the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. Realized and unrealized gains and losses arising from 
changes in the fair value of the financial assets and liabilities held at FVTPL are included in the profit or loss in the period 
in which they arise. Where management has opted to recognize a financial liability at FVTPL, any changes associated 
with the Company’s own credit risk will be recognized in other comprehensive income. Currently, there are no financial 
liabilities designated at FVTPL.    
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3.10 Taxation

a) Current         
         
 Provision for current taxation is computed in accordance with the provisions of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. 

     
         
 The charge for current taxation is based on taxable income at the current rate of taxation after taking into account 

applicable tax credit, rebates and exemptions available, if any, or minimum tax on turnover or Alternate Corporate 
Tax (ACT), whichever is higher.         
 

b) Deferred        
         
 Deferred tax is recognized using the balance sheet liability method for all temporary differences at the reporting 

date between tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes. The 
amount of deferred tax provided is based on the expected manner of realization or the settlement of the carrying 
amounts of assets and liabilities, using the tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. 
         

 Deferred tax asset is recognized for all deductible temporary differences and carry forward of unused tax losses, 
if any, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit for the foreseeable future will be available against which 
such assets can be utilized.

3.11 Staff retirement benefits - defined contribution plan  
   
 The Company operates a recognized approved employees provident fund scheme for all permanent employees eligible 

for the benefit. Equal contributions are made, both by the Company and the employees, in accordance with the terms 
of the scheme. These contributions are transferred to a separate provident fund trust, where these are invested as per 
the requirements of the Act and rules made thereunder. 

   
3.12 Trade and other payables  
   
 Liabilities for trade and other amounts payable including accrued liabilities are carried at cost which is the fair value of 

the consideration to be paid in future for goods and services received.
   
3.13 Foreign currency transaction  
   
 Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into reporting currency at the rates of exchange approximating those 

prevailing on the date of transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated 
at the rates ruling on the reporting date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities are recorded using exchange rates that 
existed when the values were determined. Exchange differences on foreign currency translations are included in profit 
or loss.  

   
3.14 Provisions   
   
 Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present (legal or constructive) obligation as a result of past events 

and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and 
a reliable estimate of the amount can be made. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect 
the current best estimate. 

   

3.5 Stores, spare parts and loose tools        
  

 Stores, spare parts and loose tools are valued at lower of moving average cost and net realizable value, less provision 
for impairment if any. Items in transit are valued at cost comprising invoice value plus other directly attributable 
charges incurred thereon. Valuation of items is reviewed at each reporting date to record any provision for obsolete 
and slow moving items if required.         
 

 Net realizable value signifies the estimated market prices (being replacement cost) in the ordinary course of business 
less the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.       
  

3.6 Stock-in-trade        
         
 These are valued at the lower of weighted average cost and net realizable value.     

     
 Cost in relation to raw material comprises all costs of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to 

their present location and condition. 
         
 Cost in relation to billets (work in process) and finished goods represents cost of raw material and an appropriate portion 

of manufacturing overheads.  
         
 Raw material in transit consist of invoice value plus other charges paid thereon up to the reporting date.  

      
         
 Valuation of stock items are reviewed at each reporting date to record any provision for obsolete and slow moving items 

if required.   
         
 Net realizable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated cost of 

completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.      
    

3.7 Trade and other receivables        
         
 Trade and other receivables are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost after 

deducting allowance for uncollectable amounts, if any. The Company applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to measure 
the expected credit losses (ECL) which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance for trade and other receivables. The 
Company has established a provision matrix that is based on the Company’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted 
for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment. However, in certain cases, the 
Company may also consider a financial asset to be in default when internal or external information indicates that 
the Company is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into account any credit 
enhancements held by the Company. Trade and other receivables considered irrecoverable are written off.  
 

         
3.8 Loans, advances and deposits        
         
 Loans and advances are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost after deducting 

allowance for uncollectable amounts, if any. Loans and advances considered irrecoverable are written off.  
   

         
3.9 Cash and bank balances        
         
 Cash and bank balances consist of cash in hand and cash at banks in current accounts at amortized cost.
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3.21 Earning Per share        
         
 The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is calculated 

by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number 
of ordinary shares outstanding during the year. Whereas, diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss 
attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding for the effects of 
all dilutive potential ordinary shares. 

       
3.22 Deferred grant        
          
 Government grant is recognized where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attached 

conditions will be complied with. When the grant related to an expense item, it is recognized in the statement of profit or 
loss on a systematic basis over the periods that the related costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are expensed. 
When the grant relates to an asset, it is recognized as income in equal amounts over the expected useful life of the 
related asset.

           
3.23 Cash and cash equivalents        
          
 Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of financial position comprise cash at banks and in hand. 

       
3.24 Segment reporting        
          
 For management’s decision making purposes, the activities of the Company are organized into single reportable 

operating segment based on the similarity of the nature of the products, risks and returns, organizational and management 
structure, and internal financial reporting systems. Accordingly, the figures reported in the financial statements are 
related to the Company’s only reportable segment.        
   

4 DETAILS OF RELATED PARTIES         
  

 Followings are the names of those related parties with whom the company has made transactions 
during the current financial year. 

Name of related parties % of holding Basis of relationship

Denim International (Private) Limited - Common Directorship

Agha Welfare Trust -
Key management personnel is also

a Trustee of the trust

Agha Steel Industries -
Key management personnel are also

 Partners of the firm
A and Z Associates - Director is a sole proprietor of the firm.
Agha Steel Industries Staff Provident Fund - Employees' Provident Fund
Mr. Hussain Iqbal Agha - Chief Executive (sponsor) 26% Key management personnel
Mrs. Shazia Iqbal Agha - Chairperson 3% Key management personnel
Mr. Raza Iqbal Agha - Director (sponsor) 24% Key management personnel
Mr. Askari Asghar Agha - Director 0.00002% Key management personnel
Mr. Saad Iqbal - Director 9% Key management personnel
Mr. Muhammad Asif - Director 0.0093% Key management personnel
Mr. Akbar Pesnani - Director 0.00002% Key management personnel

3.15 Borrowing costs  
   
 Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a 

substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost of the respective 
asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the year in which they occur. Borrowing cost consists of interest and 
other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

   
3.16 Revenue recognition 

- Revenue is recognized at amounts that reflect the consideration that the Company expects to be entitled to 
in exchange for transferring goods to a customer. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration 
received or receivable, and is recognized on the following basis: 

        
- Revenue from sale of goods is measured based on the consideration specified in a contract with a customer and 

is recognized when control of goods have been transferred to a customer at a point in time when the performance 
obligations are met. The transaction price of Company’s contracts with customers for the sale of goods does 
not include any variable consideration, any significant financing component, any non cash consideration or any 
consideration payable to its customers.

3.17 Other income        
         

- Interest income is recognized on a time-apportioned basis using the effective rate of return method.  
     

         
- Gain / (loss) arising on disposal of fixed assets is recognized on the date when the transaction takes 

place. 
      
- Miscellaneous income is recognized on occurrence of transactions.

3.18 Dividend and appropriation to/from reserves       
   

 Dividend and appropriation to reserves are recognized in the financial statements in the period, in which these are 
approved. However, if these are approved after the reporting period but before the financial statements are authorized 
for issue, they are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. 

3.19 Share Capital        
          
 Ordinary shares are classified as equity and recognized at their face value. Incremental costs directly attributable to the 

issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.   
    

          
3.20 Advance against preference shares        

   
 These are carried at the amount of consideration received for issuance of preference shares in subsequent year. The 

terms of preference shares are disclosed in note 17.1 to these financial statements.    
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5.2  The details of operating fixed assets sold, having net book value in excess of Rs. 500,000 each are 
as follows:

 

Cost
Accumulated 
Depreciation

Written 
Down 
Value

Sale 
proceeds

Gain / 
(loss) on 
disposal

- Honda City 1,401    (708)             694     1,244        551          As per company policy Mr. Umer Irshad Employee
- Suzuki Wagon R 1,190    (751)             439     826          388          As per company policy Mr. Anus Employee
-Suzuki  Mehran 903       (262)             641     1,580        939          As per company policy Mr.Kashif Employee
- Honda City 2,696    (920)             1,775  1,464        (312)         As per company policy Mr. Waqar Employee
- Toyota Corolla GLI 2,172    (1,543)           629     1,333        705          As per company policy Mr. Muneeb Khan Employee
- Cultus VXL 1,085    (730)             356     500          144          As per company policy Ms Rukhshinda Employee
- Honda City 1,328    (602)             727     736          9              As per company policy Mr. Ajmal Khan Employee
                    - 

2023 10,776 (5,516)          5,260 7,684       2,424       

2022 18,905   (11,361)         7,544  16,343      8,799        

Description Mode of disposal Relationship

- - - - - - - - - - - - - Rupees in '000' - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 

Name of buyer

 2023  2022 
Note  - - - - Rupees in '000'- - - - 

5.3 Capital work in progress

Machinery in transit 5.3.1  11,122,713  8,848,257 

5.3.1 Machinery in transit

Opening  8,848,257  7,669,387 
Additions during the year  1,763,761  2,023,656 
Borrowing costs 5.3.2  680,774  187,777 
Transfer during the year  (170,079)  (1,032,563)

5.3.3  11,122,713  8,848,257 

5.3.2 The rate used to determine the amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation was 17.73%, which is the EIR of the specific 
borrowings. 

  
5.3.3 Represents expenditure incurred for acquisition and installation of Mi. Da. Rolling Mill under balancing modernization and 

replacement to enhance production capacity of Deform Steel Rebars by 400,000 metric tonnes. The management expects that 
these will be available for commercial production in the coming financial year. 

 2023  2022 
Note  - - - - Rupees in '000'- - - - 

5.4 Depreciation has been allocated as follows:

Cost of sales 25  384,031  361,447 
Gross profit 26  16,682  15,701 
Administrative expenses 27  10,129  9,533 
Other income - Air Separation Unit 30.1  40,736  38,341 

 451,578  425,022 

 2023  2022 
Note  - - - - Rupees in '000'- - - - 

 5 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Operating fixed assets 5.1  10,154,667  10,300,831 
Capital work in progress (CWIP) 5.3  11,122,713  8,848,257 

 21,277,380  19,149,088 

5.1 Operating fixed assets 

 

 Right - of - 
use Assets  

Leasehold 
land

Buildings on 
leasehold 

land

Plant and 
machinery

Furniture and 
fixtures

Major spare 
parts and stand 
- by equipment

Computer Vehicles  Vehicles 

Year ended June 30, 2023
Opening net book value 748,561   1,583,193    7,422,816     13,442            359,550         7,168          39,995           126,106   10,300,831    
Additions -           -               34,546           5,809              50,916            2,228          538                46,558      140,595         
Transfer from CWIP 170,079         170,079         

Transfers - net
Cost -           -               -                -                 -                 -              6,784             (6,784)      -                 
Accumulated depreciation -           -               -                -                 -                 -              (4,292)            4,292        -                 

-           -               -                -                 -                 -              2,492             (2,492)      -                 

Disposals
Cost -           -               -                 -                 -                 -              (10,776)          -           (10,776)          
Accumulated depreciation -           -               -                -                 -                 -              5,516             -           5,516              

-           -               -                -                 -                 -              (5,260)            -           (5,260)            
Depreciation for the year -           (42,171)        (273,078)       (2,543)            (95,591)          (2,837)         (7,317)            (28,041)    (451,578)        

Closing net book value 748,561   1,541,022    7,354,363     16,708            314,875         6,559          30,448           142,131   10,154,667    
-           -               -                 -                 -                 -              -                 -           -                 

As at June 30, 2023
Cost 748,561   1,786,862    8,461,169     28,667            880,991         20,315        103,338         212,310   12,242,213    
Accumulated depreciation -           (245,840)      (1,106,806)    (11,959)          (566,116)        (13,756)       (72,890)          (70,179)    (2,087,546)     

As at June 30, 2023 748,561   1,541,022    7,354,363     16,708            314,875         6,559          30,448           142,131   10,154,667    

Opening net book value 748,561   1,602,419    6,379,793     12,525            479,400         7,067          36,349           130,856   9,396,970      
Additions -           23,622         229,841         3,021              -                 3,307          429                43,645      303,865         
Transfer from CWIP -           -               1,032,563     -                 -                 -              -                 -           1,032,563      

Transfers - net
Cost -           -               -                 -                 -                 -              47,888           (47,888)    -                 
Accumulated depreciation -           -               -                 -                 -                 -              (28,992)          28,992      -                 

-           -               -                 -                 -                 -              18,896           (18,896)    -                 
Disposals

Cost -           -               -                 -                 -                 -              (18,905)          -           (18,905)          
Accumulated depreciation -           -               -                 -                 -                 -              11,361           -           11,361            

-           -               -                 -                 -                 -              (7,544)            -           (7,544)            
Depreciation for the year -           (42,848)        (219,381)       (2,104)            (119,850)        (3,206)         (8,135)            (29,499)    (425,023)        

Closing net book value 748,561   1,583,193    7,422,816     13,442            359,550         7,168          39,995           126,106   10,300,831    

As at June 30, 2022
Cost 748,561   1,786,862    8,256,544     22,858            830,075         18,087        106,792         172,536   11,942,315    
Accumulated depreciation -           (203,669)      (833,728)       (9,416)            (470,525)        (10,919)       (66,797)          (46,430)    (1,641,484)     

748,561   1,583,193    7,422,816     13,442            359,550         7,168          39,995           126,106   10,300,831    

Rate of depreciation (%) 0% (2.5 to 3)% (3 to 5)% 15% 25% 33% 20% 20%

Particulars

Owned Asset

 Total 

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - Rupees in '000' - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 
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7.1 Represents receivable from Agha Steel Industries - an associated undertaking on account of deferred tax liability 
recorded in the books of the Company upon acquisition of net assets of the associated undertaking by the Company 
as related tax benefits were already availed by the associated undertaking. As per addendum to the business transfer 
agreement, the associated undertaking will pay the amount to the extent of payment of tax to be made in subsequent 
years by the Company on yearly basis against the aforementioned deferred tax liability. Maximum aggregate amount 
outstanding at any month end was Rs. 460.650 (2022: Rs. 508.966) million. It carries markup 3 months KIBOR + 1% 
per annum (2022: 3 months KIBOR + 1%). 

 2023  2022 
Note  - - - - Rupees in '000'- - - - 

8 STOCK-IN-TRADE

Raw materials  4,803,583  7,685,229 
Raw materials in transit  889,304  442,878 
Work in process  2,703,979  1,658,273 
Finished goods  2,042,997  2,513,325 

 10,439,863  12,299,705 

9 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 

- Considered good
Trade debts  5,005,501  5,084,620 
Allowance for expected credit losses 9.1  (449,087)  (366,004)

 4,556,414  4,718,616 
- from associated undertakings
- markup 9.2  79,105  61,930 
- current maturity of long term receivable 7  35,675  41,506 
- sales tax 9.3  277,601  449,837 

 392,381  553,273 
 4,948,795  5,271,889 

9.1 Allowance for expected credit losses

Opening  366,004  156,322 
Impairment losses recognized during the year - net  83,083  209,682 
Closing  449,087  366,004 

9.2 Represents markup on loan to Denim International (Private) Limited (related party) and receivable from Agha Steel 
Industries (related party) amounting to Rs Nil (2022: 13.148) and Rs. 79.105 (2022: 48.782) million, respectively, at 
the interest rate disclosed in note 7 to these financial statements. The maximum aggregate amount outstanding at any 
month’s end was Rs. 79.105 (2022: 48.782) million respectively. The outstanding amount at the reporting date is not 
past due.          

9.3 Represents receivable from M/s. Agha Steel Industries (related party) on account of sales tax refundable which will 
be transferred to the Company once refund is allowed to related party. Maximum aggregate amount outstanding at 
any month end was Rs. 449.837 (2022: Rs. 449.837) million. During the year, Rs. 172.236 million has been received. 
Further, the outstanding amount is past due for more than one year but not impaired as the management, based on the 
advice of its tax counsel and legal adviser and the facts of the appeal filed by M/s. Agha Steel Industries (related party) 
with the Honourable High Court of Sindh, is confident for the recovery of full amount. 

5.5 Particulars of immovable property in the name of the Company are as follows:

Location  Total Area Covered
 (Acres) Area

Lease hold land and building thereon
Plot No. N.W.I.Z. /1/ P-133,SP-6 D-2, Port Qasim Authority, Karachi.  10  4.25* 

Lease hold land 
Plot No. N.W.I.Z. /1/ P-133, SP-6 E-1 Port Qasim Authority, Karachi.  17 -

Corporate Office
Plot no. G-19, Office # 801, 803 & 804, 8th Floor, Emerald Tower, II Talwar,
Block # 5, Clifton, Karachi.  0.34 0.34

* Represents multi storey buildings.

 2023  2022 
Note  - - - - Rupees in '000'- - - - 

6 INTANGIBLE ASSET

Computer software - net book value 6.1  42,390  48,670 

6.1 Computer software - net book value

Gross carrying amount - cost  62,800  62,800 
Less: Accumulated amortization 6.1.1  (20,410)  (14,130)
Net book value  42,390  48,670 

6.1.1 Accumulated amortization

Opening balance  14,130  7,850 
Amortization during the year 26  6,280  6,280 

 20,410  14,130 

Amortization rates 10% 10%

7 LONG TERM DEPOSITS AND RECEIVABLE

Security Deposits
Against lease liabilities  61,855  50,438 
Less: Current portion shown under current assets 11  (4,842)  (1,253)

 57,013  49,185 
Against utilities  8,981  8,981 

 65,994  58,166 
Receivable - considered good

- Unsecured
Due from associated undertaking (related party) 7.1  419,144  460,650 
Less: Current portion shown under current assets 9  (35,675)  (41,506)

 383,469  419,144 
 449,463  477,311 
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14 SHARE CAPITAL 

14.1 Authorized Capital

 2023  2022  2023  2022 
 - - - Number of shares - - - Note  - - - - Rupees in '000'- - - - 

625,000,000 625,000,000 Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each

14.2 Issued, subscribed and paid up capital

Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each
1,000,000 1,000,000 fully paid in cash  10,000  10,000 

 360,401,293  360,401,293 for other than cash 14.3  3,604,013  3,604,013 
 94,674,000  94,674,000 for other than cash 14.4  946,740  946,740 

 120,000,000  120,000,000 fully paid in cash 1.2  1,200,000  1,200,000 
 28,803,765  -   bonus shares  288,038  288,038 

 604,879,058  576,075,293  14.5 & 14.6  6,048,791  6,048,791 

         
14.3 Represents ordinary shares issued by the Company to the partners of M/s. Agha Steel Industries (the Firm), who 

are also directors of the Company, for acquisition of net assets of the Firm in accordance with the Business Transfer 
Agreement dated June 01, 2017.         
 

14.4 Represents ordinary shares issued against conversion of directors’ loan amounting to Rs. 946.740 million.  
       

          
14.5 The ordinary share holders are entitled to receive all distributions including dividends and other entitlements in the 

form of bonus and right shares, as and when declared by the Company. All shares carry one vote per share without 
restriction.

 2023  2022 
  - - - - Number of shares - - - - 

14.6 Reconciliation of number of shares outstanding is as under:

Shares at the beginning of the year  604,879,058  576,075,293 
Bonus shares issued during the year  -    28,803,765 
Shares at the end of the year  604,879,058  604,879,058 

14.7 Shares held by the related parties of the Company

Name of the shareholders
Mr. Hussain Iqbal Agha - Chief Executive  155,552,057  168,491,057 
Mrs. Shazia Iqbal Agha - Chairperson  18,856,625  112,251,894 
Mr. Raza Iqbal Agha - Director  147,201,502  168,491,057 
Mr. Saad Iqbal - Director  52,422,852  -   
Mr. Muhammad Asif - Director  56,194  56,194 
Mr. Askari Asghar Agha - Director  105  105 
Mr. Akbar Pesnani - Director  105  105 

 2023  2022 
Note  - - - - Rupees in '000'- - - - 

10 LOANS AND ADVANCES

- Considered good
Loans

- to employees 10.1  5,599  15,130 
Advances

- against supplies  1,299,057  1,163,919 
- against sales tax  510,690  260,239 

 1,809,747  1,424,158 
 1,815,346  1,439,288 

        
10.1 Represents interest free loans given to executives and other employees of the Company for their personal use in 

accordance with their terms of employment. These loans are to be repaid over a period of one year in equal monthly 
installments and are secured against the post employment benefits. 

 2023  2022 
Note  - - - - Rupees in '000'- - - - 

11 DEPOSITS

 - Deposits against
Current portion of lease liabilities 7  4,842  1,253 
Containers  -    2,165 
Rent  5,394  5,124 
Earnest money  2,774  7,284 
Others  4,622  5,401 

 17,632  21,227 

12 TAX REFUNDS DUE FROM GOVERNMENT

Income tax refundable 12.1  540,924  500,242 

12.1 Income tax refundable

Opening  500,242  471,731 
Paid during the year  369,634  373,733 
Prior year tax 31  19,460  30,768 
Current tax 31  (276,170)  (375,990)
Adjustment of WWF  (72,242)  -   
Closing  540,924  500,242 

13 CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Cash in hand  3,439  3,276 
Cash at banks
Current accounts  80,436  206,668 
Deposit account 13.1  3,420  5,119 

 83,856  211,787 
 87,295  215,063 

 
13.1 Deposit account carries profit ranging from 3.9% to 5.03% (2022: 3.5% to 4.4%) per annum.
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16.4 Represents the loan obtained under SBP temporary economic refinance facility (TERF) up to Rs. 500 million from 
a commercial bank for import of machinery. The loan is secured by joint pari passu charge over fixed assets of the 
Company amounting to Rs. 667.67 million with 25% margin and personal guarantees of executive directors. The loan 
carries mark-up at SBP LTFF rate (1%) + 4% per annum.      

          
 The facility is disbursed in separate tranches and each disbursement to be treated as a separate loan. The outstanding 

amount as at June 30, 2023 is repayable in equal quarterly installments starting from November, 2023 and latest by 
January 2031. 

16.5 During the year, the company has obtained a syndicated term finance facility (STFF) up to Rs. 2,500 million (inclusive 
of green shoe option of up to Rs. 500 million) for a period of six years (inclusive of 2 years grace period) from banking 
companies for the purpose of funding suppliers credit which was temporarily repaid through bridge financing as disclosed 
in note 16.6 and partial financing of CAPEX. The loan is secured against mortgage charge (1st pari passu equitable 
mortgage Charge) on land with 25% margin and 1st pari passu hypothecation charge over all present & future non-
current assets (excluding Land & Building) with 25% margin, lien and set off rights over accounts opened and personal 
guarantees of the sponsor directors. It carries mark-up at average 3 months KIBOR plus 1.5 percent per annum that is 
repayable on quarterly basis. The Company has incurred transaction cost of Rs. 53 million to obtain the STFF.  
        

 The outstanding amount is repayable  in 16 quarterly installments starting from March 31, 2025 and latest by March 31, 
2031.    

          
16.6 The company had financing to bridge the timeline between maturities of acceptances under supplier credit LCs for Mi. 

Da. plant and drawdown of long term loan (syndicated / Sukuk). The entire amount of the loan has been repaid from 
the proceed of the syndicated term finance facility availed during the year as disclosed in note 16.5 to these financial 
statements. 

      
16.7 Represents syndicated term finance facility (STFF) up to Rs. 1,750 million for a period of five years (inclusive of 1 year 

grace period) from banking companies for the purpose of conversion of short term debt into long term debt and partial 
financing of CAPEX. The loan is secured against 1st pari passu charge over all present and future fixed assets with 
25% margin, lien over selected accounts and debt payment account and personal guarantees of all sponsors. It carries 
mark-up at 3 months KIBOR plus 1.35 percent per annum. The Company has incurred transaction cost of Rs. 21.47 
million to issue said certificates. 

          
 The outstanding amount is repayable in 12 quarterly installments (twelve installments of 131.25 million each) starting 

from September 30, 2023 and latest by June 30, 2026.
          
16.8 Represents Islamic financing facility up to Rs. 124.74 million for renewable energy (IFRE) for purchase of Solar Panel 

of 2.25 MW from an Islamic Bank. The loan is secured against registered Joint Pari Passu Charge of Rs. 213 million 
over fixed assets (Land, Building, Plant and Machinery) at Plot # NWIZ/1/P133 (SP-6) D-2, PQA, Karachi and personal 
guarantee of all directors except independent directors. The loan carries profit at IFRE base rate + 2% per annum with 
floor and cap of 3% and 6%.

      
 The outstanding amount is repayable in 40 quarterly installments starting from July 28, 2023 and latest by April 28, 2034. 
   
16.9 Represents privately placed rated secured sukuk certificates issued by the Company aggregating to Rs. 5,000 

million having face value of Rs. 1,000,000/- each for a period of 6 years (inclusive of 2 years grace period) for 
the purpose of settlement of existing long term debts and funding portion of costs associated with BMR and 
commission of new rolling mill unit. These carry profit at average 3 months KIBOR plus 80 basis points per 
annum and is secured against first pari passu hypothecation charge over all present and future fixed assets and 
immovable property amounting to Rs. 6,667 million. The outstanding amount at year end is repayable in 11 equal 
quarterly installments. The Company has incurred transaction cost of Rs. 89.109 million to issue said certificates. 
 

 2023  2022 
Note  - - - - Rupees in '000'- - - - 

15 CAPITAL RESERVE

Share premium 15.1  2,126,687 2,126,687 

15.1 Movement in share premium account during the year

Opening 1.2  2,126,687  2,414,725 
Less: utilized as transaction cost on issuance of shares as
allowed under section 81 of the Act.
Bonus issued during the year  -    (288,038)
Closing  2,126,687  2,126,687 

16 LONG TERM BORROWINGS

Secured
- From banking companies

- Conventional 
Samba Bank Limited - TF 16.1  200,000  300,000 
United Bank Limited - NIDF 16.2  87,500  145,813 
JS Bank Limited - PF 16.3  -    79,445 
JS Bank Limited - TERF 16.4  491,105  349,618 
JS Bank Limited - STFF 16.5  2,450,794  -   
Bank Al Habib Limited - BF 16.6  -    1,700,000 
Askari Bank Limited - STFF 16.7  1,565,584  1,734,486 

 4,794,983  4,309,362 
- Shariah compliant

Meezan Bank Limited - IFRE 16.8  124,744  124,744 
Sukuk certificates 16.9  3,416,882  4,332,791 

 3,541,626  4,457,535 
 8,336,609  8,766,897 

Less: Current portion shown under current liabilities 22  (4,112,669)  (3,364,064)
 4,223,940  5,402,833 

16.1 Represents term finance facility (TF) up to Rs. 500 million from commercial bank to finance capital expansion project 
including civil works / retire machinery LCs. The loan is secured by first/joint pari passu hypothecation charge over 
present and future fixed assets (building, plant and machinery) amounting to Rs. 667 million. The facility carries mark-up 
at average 3 months KIBOR + 0.75% per annum. 

 The outstanding amount as at June 30, 2023 is repayable in 08 quarterly installments starting from July 01, 2023 and 
latest by April 01, 2025.  

          
16.2 Represents term finance facility (NIDF) up to Rs. 455 million from commercial bank for enhancement of production 

capacity. The loan is secured by equitable mortgage amounting to Rs. 667 million over land, building, plant and 
machinery. The loan carries mark-up at 3 months KIBOR + 1% per annum.   

          
 The outstanding amount as at June 30, 2023 is repayable in 6 equal quarterly installments starting from September 04, 

2023 and latest by December 04, 2024.          
 

16.3 The entire amount of loan has been repaid during the year.       
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 2023  2022 
Note  - - - - Rupees in ‘000’- - - - 

Minimum lease payment 
Up to one year  44,731  35,581 
More than one year but not later than 5 years  121,354  118,880 

 166,085  154,461 
Financial charges

Up to one year  10,294  6,770 
More than one year but not later than 5 years  12,633  8,296 

 22,927  15,066 
Present value of minimum lease payments 

Up to one year  34,437  28,811 
More than one year but not later than 5 years  108,721  110,584 

 143,158  139,395 
Current portion shown under current liabilities  (34,437)  (28,811)

 108,721  110,584 

19 DEFERRED LIABILITY

Deferred taxation - net 19.1  1,063,819  1,057,122 

19.1 Deferred taxation - net

This comprises of the following: -
Taxable temporary difference

Accelerated tax depreciation  1,535,106  1,639,697 
Long term financing  4,531  396 

 1,539,637  1,640,093 
Deductible temporary differences

Alternate corporate tax  (40,241)  (206,302)
Minimum tax  (263,826)  (229,707)
Deferred grant  -    (396)
Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease  (41,516)  (40,425)
Expected credit loss  (130,235)  (106,141)

 (475,818)  (582,971)
 1,063,819  1,057,122 

20 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade creditors  14,986  20,080 
Bills payable 20.1  494,780  714,794 
Advance from customers - unsecured  -    33,096 
Retention payables  4,509  4,509 
Accrued liabilities  127,379  112,687 
Payables to provident fund 32  2,720  6,276 
Workers welfare fund payable 20.2  20,174  77,242 
Workers profit participation fund payable 20.3  163,468  157,181 
Withholding tax payable  1,370  2,875 

 829,386  1,128,740 
    
20.1 Includes Rs. Nil (2022: 27.975 million) payable on account of bills discounting charges of Company’s Supplier that are 

borne by the Company in accordance with the underlying agreement.

Subsequent to the year end, the Company has fully repaid the outstanding amount of sukuk certificates at year. For 
this the Company has arranged loan facility of shariah compliant privately placed sukuk under islamic diminishing 
musharaka (or other islamic mode) amounting to Rs. 3,400 million. Accordingly, the entire amount of sukuk certificates 
outstanding at year end is classified under current maturity. 

 2023  2022 
Note  - - - - Rupees in ‘000’- - - - 

17 ADVANCE AGAINST PREFERENCE SHARES

Opening  -    -   
Received during the year  500,000  -   
Closing 17.1  500,000  -   

17.1 During the year, an advance of Rs. 500 million is received from sponsoring directors who have offered to subscribe 
to the issuance of unlisted redeemable cumulative non-convertible non-voting preference shares carrying preferential 
dividend at the rate of 6 months KIBOR plus 50 basis points per annum having face value of Rs. 10 each duly approved 
by the members of the Company which will be issued in the subsequent year subject to compliance with applicable laws 
and approval of SECP.  

 2023  2022 
Note  - - - - Rupees in ‘000’- - - - 

18 LEASE LIABILITIES
- Secured

Opening  139,395  133,914 
Paid during the year  (35,499)  (17,447)
Terminated during the year  (3,689)  (19,417)
Obtained during the year  42,951  42,345 

 143,158  139,395 
Less: Current portion shown under current liabilities 22  (34,437)  (28,811)

18.1  108,721  110,584 
 

18.1 Represents lease agreements entered into with the banking company for auto leasing. These carry markup at six month 
average KIBOR + 1%. Lease rentals are payable in monthly installments. At the end of lease term, the Company has 
an option to acquire the assets, subject to adjustment of security deposits. These, along with other facilities from the 
same banking company as disclosed in note 21.1,  have been secured against Joint pari passu hypothecation charge 
of Rs. 6,330 million over moveables and receivables, joint pari passu equitable mortgage charge of Rs. 2,466.67 million 
over  plot no. NWIZ/1/P-133 (SP-6) D-2,  first equitable mortgage charge of Rs. 2,500 million over  plot no. SP-6 / E-1, 
personal guarantees for Rs. 9,000 million from directors and corporate guarantee of Rs. 7,000 million.  
         

 The amount of future payments of the leases and the periods in which these payments will become due are as follows:
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 2023  2022 
Note  - - - - Rupees in ‘000’- - - - 

- Samba Bank Limited  504,294  592,993 
- JS Bank Limited  458,377  505,519 
- MCB Bank Limited  184,929  78,961 
- Bank Al Habib Limited  993,691  793,877 
- Bank of Punjab  1,110,517  930,771 
- Bank of Khyber  119,989  108,204 
- National Bank Limited  -    471,489 
- Askari Bank Limited  1,339,036  1,240,294 

21.2  7,570,514  7,216,367 
- Islamic bank

- Meezan Bank Limited - Istasna  571,756  983,018 
- MCB Islamic Bank Limited  164,982  244,928 
- Dubai Islamic Bank Limited  200,109  6,522 
- Faysal Bank Limited  701,217  782,468 
- Allied Bank Islamic Banking  89,355  98,385 
- Bank Islami Limited  -    656,524 

21.2  1,727,419  2,771,845 

LDBP - Bank Al Habib Limited 21.3  11,218  105,081 
 13,728,859  14,045,946 

21.1 Details of Running Financing are as follows:

 

Name of 

Bank
Purpose Security

Markup 

Rate

Available 

Limit (Rs.)

Unavailed 

Limit (Rs.)

CONVENTIONAL

Bank Al 

Habib 

Limited

For working 

capital 

requirements

Joint pari passu hypothecation charge of Rs. 6,330

million over moveables and receivables, joint pari

passu equitable mortgage charge of Rs. 2,466.67

million over plot no. NWIZ/1/P-133 (SP-6) D-2,

first equitable mortgage charge of Rs. 2,500 million

over plot no. SP-6 / E-1, personal guarantees for

Rs. 9,000 million from directors and corpoarte

guarantee of Rs. 7,000 million.

1month 
KIBOR plus 
0.85 % p.a 

1,900 (2022: 

1,900) 

million

61.34 (2022: 

476.15) 

million

Bank 

Alfalah 

Limited

For working 

capital 

requirements

Joint pari passu hypothecation charge over stocks

and receivables of Rs. 1,067 million, and personal

guarantees of all directors.

1 month 
KIBOR plus 
1.25% p.a

 200 (2022: 

200) million

1.89 (2022: 

2.303) 

million

Askari 

Bank 

Limited

For working 

capital 

requirements

Joint pari passu hypothecation charge of Rs. 2,734

million over present and future of stocks and

receivables with 25% margin and personal

guarantee of directors.

3 month 
KIBOR plus 
0.85% p.a

515 (2022: 

640) million

Nil (2022: 

125) million

United 

Bank 

Limited

For working 

capital 

requirements

Joint pari passu hypothecation charge of Rs. 1,000

million over stocks and receivables, and personal

guarantees of all the sponsor directors.

1 month 

KIBOR 

plus 1% p.a

250 (2022: 

250) million 

Nil (2022: 

Nill) million

 2023  2022 
Note  - - - - Rupees in ‘000’- - - - 

20.2 Workers welfare fund payable

Opening  77,242  51,564 
Provision during the year 29  6,297  28,262 
Reversal of provision during the year  -    (6,922)
Adjustment with income tax refund - TY 2020  (72,242)  -   
Markup on unpaid WWF  8,877  4,338 

 20,174  77,242 

20.3 Workers profit participation fund payable

Opening  157,181  100,979 
Paid during the year  (67,300)  (66,985)
Provision during the year 29  61,821  121,928 
Markup on unpaid WPPF  11,766  1,259 

 163,468  157,181 

21 SHORT TERM BORROWINGS

 - From banking companies
- Secured

Running Finance
- Conventional banks

- Bank Al Habib Limited  1,838,664  1,423,852 
- Bank Alfalah Limited  198,114  197,697 
- Askari Bank Limited  515,000  515,000 
- United Bank Limited  250,000  250,000 
- Samba Bank Limited  299,847  286,926 
- Habib Metro Bank Limited  229,748  299,731 
- Habib Bank Limited  94,612  42,764 
- MCB Bank Limited  297,131  299,183 
- Bank of Punjab  100,000  100,000 
- JS Bank Limited  96,592  37,500 
- National Bank Limited  250,000  250,000 

21.1  4,169,708  3,702,653 
- Islamic bank

- Dubai Islamic Bank Limited  50,000  50,000 
- MCB Islamic Bank Limited  200,000  200,000 

 250,000  250,000 
21.1  4,419,708  3,952,653 

Finance against Trust Receipt (FATR)
- Conventional banks
- Habib Bank Limited  1,201,480  959,477 
- Bank Alfalah Limited  365,280  502,130 
- United Bank Limited  836,858  775,582 
- Habib Metro Bank Limited  456,063  257,070 
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Bank 

Alfalah 

Limited

Retirement of 

import documents 

under SLC

Joint pari passu hypothecation charge over stocks

and receivables of Rs. 1,067 million, trust receipt for

FATR and accepted draft backed by TR for

acceptance and personal guarantees of all exective

directors.

1 month 
KIBOR plus 
1.25% p.a

370 

(2022: 600) 

million 

 4.72 (2022: 

97.87) 

million

United 

Bank  

Limited

Retirement of 

sight letter of 

credits issued 

through UBL only

Joint pari passu hypothecation charge over stocks

and receivables amounting to Rs. 1,000 million, with

25% margin trust receipt duly executed in favour of

UBL and personal guarantees of all the sponsor

directors.

1 month 
KIBOR plus 

1.5% p.a

950

(2022: 950)

million

113.14 

(2022: 

174.42) 

million

Habib 

Metro 

Bank 

Limited

Retirement of 

import bills under 

LC sight of 

HMBL only

Joint pari passu hypothecation charge over stocks

and receivables amounting to Rs. 1,333.33 million

with 25% margin duly registered with SECP and

personal guarantees of all the sponsor directors.

Relevant 
KIBOR plus 
0.75% p.a

550 

(2022: 300)

million

94.27 (2022: 

42.93) 

million

Samba 

Bank 

Limited

Retirement of 

import LCs 

established at 

SBL's counters 

and others 

First pari passu/Joint pari passucharge over present

and future current assets amounting to 1,334

Millions with 25% margin, personal guarantees of all

the sponsor directors and Trust Receipts.

 
1 month 

KIBOR plus 
1.20 % p.a

700 

(2022: 618)

million

195.71 

(2022: 

25.01) 

million

JS Bank 

Limited

Retirement of LCs 

established by JS 

Bank, except for 

spare parts

Joint pari passu hypothecation charge over stocks

and receivables amounting to Rs. 934 million and

personal guarantees of all executive directors.

3 month 
KIBOR plus 
1.25% p.a

550 

(2022: 600)

million

91.62 (2022: 

94.481) 

million

MCB 

Bank 

Limited

Retirement of 

import documents 

under LC sight 

established 

through MCB.

1st Joint pari passu hypothecation charge over all

present and future stocks and receivables of Rs.

934 million duly registered with SECP and Trust

Receipts favouring in the name of MCB.

3 month 
KIBOR plus 

0.5% p.a

200 

(2022: 500)

million

15.07 (2022: 

421.039) 

million

Bank Al 

Habib 

Limited

Retirement of 

import documents 

under LC sight, 

froeign/local, 

contract (sight) 

and open account 

documents (sight).

Joint pari passu hypothecation charge of Rs. 6,330

million over moveables and receivables, joint pari

passu equitable mortgage charge of Rs. 2,466.67

million over plot no. NWIZ/1/P-133 (SP-6) D-2,

first equitable mortgage charge of Rs. 2,500 million

over plot no. SP-6 / E-1, personal guarantees for

Rs. 9,000 million from directors and corpoarte

guarantee of Rs. 7,0000 million.

6 months 
average 

KIBOR + 
0.85%

1000 

(2022: 

1000)

million

6.31 (2022: 

206.123) 

million

The 

Bank of 

Khyber

Retirement of 

import LC sight 

established 

through BOK

First pari passu charge over all present and future

current assets with 25% margin, personal

guarantees of all sponsor directors, separate

insurance policy or endorsement in favour of BOK

for Hypotheticated stock and letter of Trust.

3 month 
KIBOR plus 

1% p.a

200 

(2022: 110)

million

 80.01 

(2022: 

1.796) 

million

National 

Bank of 

Pakistan

Retirement of 

documents under 

import LC's.

1st Joint pari passu hypothecation charge over the

current assets with 25% margin amounting to Rs.

1333.33 million and trust receipts duly executed in

favour of NBP.

3 month 
KIBOR plus 

1.0% p.a

Nil 

(2022: 650)

million

 Nil (2022: 

178.511) 

million

 

Samba 

Bank 

Limited

For working 

capital 

requirements

First pari passu/Joint pari passucharge over present

and future current assets  amounting to 1,334 million 

with 25% margin, personal guarantees of all the

sponsor directors and trust receipts.

1 month 
KIBOR plus 
1.20% p.a

300 (2022: 

290) million

0.154 (2022: 

3.074 ) 

million

Habib 

Metro 

Bank 

Limited

For working 

capital 

requirements

1st pari passu hypothecation over current assetsof

Rs. 1,333.34 million with 25% margin duly

registered with SECP and personal guarantees of

all directors.

3 month 
KIBOR plus 
0.75% p.a

300 (2022: 

300) million

70.25 (2022: 

0.269) 

million

Habib 

Bank 

Limited

For working 

capital 

requirements

Joint pari passu charge over stocks and receivables

with 25% margin amounting to Rs. 2133.33 million

and personal guarantees of directors.

1 month 
KIBOR plus 
1.25% p.a

100 (2022: 

100) million

5.39 (2022: 

57.236) 

million

MCB 

Bank 

Limited

For working 

capital 

requirements

1st Joint pari passu charge over all future and

current assetsamounting to Rs. 934 million with 25

% margin duly registered with SECP.

3 month 
KIBOR plus 

0.5% p.a

300 (2022: 

300) million

2.87 (2022: 

0.817) 

million

Bank of 

Punjab

For working 

capital 

requirements

Joint pari passu charge over all future and current

assets amounting to Rs. 133.33 million with 25 %

margin duly registered with SECP and personal

guarantees of directors.

3 month 
KIBOR plus 
1.25% p.a

100 (2022: 

100) million

Nil (2022: 

Nil)

JS Bank 

Limited

For working 

capital 

requirements

Joint pari passu charge over stocks and receivables

amounting to Rs. 934 million inclusive of 25%

margin and personal guarantees of all directors.

3 month 
KIBOR plus 
1.25% p.a

100 (2022: 

100) million

3.41 (2022: 

62.5) million

National 

Bank of 

Pakistan

For working 

capital 

requirements

1st Joint pari passu hypothecation charge over the

current assets with 25% margin amounting to Rs.

1333.33 million.

3 month 
KIBOR plus 

1% p.a

250 (2022: 

250) million

Nil (2022: 

Nil) million

ISLAMIC

Dubai 

Islamic 

Bank

For working 

capital 

requirements

Joint pari passu hypothecation charge over stocks

and Receivables of the company amounting to Rs.

333.334 million and personal guarantees of all

sponsor directors.

Matching 
KIBOR plus  
1.15% p.a

50 (2022: 

50) million 

Nil (2022: 

Nil) 

MCB 

Islamic 

Bank 

Limited

For working 

capital 

requirements

Joint pari passu hypothecation charge over stocks

and Receivables of the company with 25% margin

and personal guarantees of all sponsor directors.

3 month 
KIBOR plus 
1.25% p.a

200 (2022: 

200) million 

Nil (2022: 

Nil) million

21.2 Details of FATR are as follows:

 

Name 

of Bank
Purpose Security

Markup 

Rate

Available 

Limit (Rs.)

Unavailed 

Limit (Rs.)

Habib 

Bank 

Limited

Retirement of LC 

/ Contract (sight) 

import bills of 

HBL only

Joint pari passu hypothecation charge over present

and future stocks and receivables amounting to Rs.

2133.33 million with 25% margin and personal

guarantees of directors.

Matching 
tenor 

KIBOR plus 
1% p.a

1,201.48 

(2022: 

1000)

million

Nil (2022: 

40.523) 

million
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 21.3 LDBP - Bank Al Habib Limited

 

Name of 
Bank / 
Facility

Purpose Security
Markup 

Rate
Available 
Limit (Rs.)

Unavailed 
Limit (Rs.)

Bank Al Habib 

Limited - Local 

documentary 

bills purchased

To finance usance

period of local bills

sent on collection

Joint pari passu hypothecation charge of

Rs. 6,330 million over moveables and

receivables, joint pari passu equitable

mortgage charge of Rs. 2,466.67 million

over plot no. NWIZ/1/P-133 (SP-6) D-2,

first equitable mortgage charge of Rs.

2,500 million over plot no. SP-6 / E-1,

personal guarantees for Rs. 9,000 million

from directors and corporate guarantee of

Rs. 7,0000 million.

Correspondin

g tenure 

KIBOR plus 

1% p.a

1200 

(2022: 1200) 

million 

1188.782 

million (2022: 

1094.919) 

 2023  2022 
Note  - - - - Rupees in ‘000’- - - - 

22 CURRENT PORTION OF NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

- long term borrowings 16  4,112,669  3,364,064 
- deferred grant 30.2  -    1,367 
- lease liabilities 18  34,437  28,811 

 4,147,106  3,394,242 
 
23 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS        

   
23.1 Contingencies         
 The Company has filed a Constitutional Petition (CP no. D-2253/2020) before the Honourable High Court of Sindh 

challenging the illegal and retrospective charge of the Industrial Support Package Adjustment (ISPA) from July 2019 
onwards from industrial consumers which was through Corrigendum by the Ministry of Energy dated 22.01.2020 
issued on the basis of SRO No. 810(I)/2019. In September 2020, the Honourable High Court of Sindh disposed off the 
said petition and passed the direction whereby the said Corrigendum was declared illegal and void ab initio, but the 
aforementioned SRO was upheld. Thereafter, being aggrieved by the decision, the Company has filed a Civil petition 
for Leave of Appeal (CPLA’s) with the honourable Supreme Court of Pakistan impugning the aforesaid judgment. 
In November 2020, the SCP granted leave in the CPLA’s and passed an interim order suspending the effect of the 
impugned judgment. ON March 17, 2022, the Apex Court dismissed the appeal of K Electric, whereby, the Chief Justice 
of Pakistan verbally announced the dismissal in open court, however, in the written order the Court decided that the 
matter shall be listed for re-hearing.   

           
 On January 19, 2023, the matter was re-heard whereafter the appeals of K-electric were allowed and the appeals of 

the consumers were dismissed and the matter of adjustment consequent to SRO 810 was referred to NEPRA for its 
determination and issuance of a schedule of tariff amending the uniform tariff for K-electric. Against the judgment, the 
company has filed a review petition in the honourable Supreme Court of Pakistan but the same has not been fixed for 
hearing as of the reporting date.        

           
 The management based on the advice of its legal adviser expects that the Company is not liable to pay the sums 

retrospectively charged by K-Electric in March 2020 for the increased rates for electricity consumption during off-peak 
hours during the six-month period from July 2019 to December 2019, therefore, the contingent liability related to ISPA 
amounting approximately to Rs 156.539 million is not recorded in these financial statements. 

           

 

Askari 

Bank 

Limited

Retirement of 

import documents

Joint pari passu hypothecation charge of Rs. 2,734

million over present and future of stocks and

receivables with 25% margin and personal

guarantee of directors.

1 month 
KIBOR plus 
0.85 % p.a

1410 

(2022: 

1,250)

million

70.96 (2022: 

9.706) 

million

The 

Bank of 

Punjab

Retirement of 

documents under 

import LC's 

through BOP 

counter

Joint pari passu charge over all present & future

current assets with 25% margin amounting to Rs.

1,200 million duly registered in SECP and total

charge amounting to 1,334 million.

3 month 
KIBOR plus 
1.25 % p.a

900 million

(2022: 

930.77)

Nil (2022: 

Nil) 

Name 
of Bank

Purpose Security
Markup 

Rate
Available 
Limit (Rs.)

Unavailed 
Limit (Rs.)

ISLAMIC

Meezan 

Bank 

Limited

To facilitate in 

manufacturing of 

billets/bars

Joint pari passu hypothecation charge over stocks

and receivables of Rs. 1,334 million duly registered

with SECP, and personal guarantees of all directors.

6 month 
KIBOR plus 

1% p.a

1,000 

(2022: 

1,000)

million

 429 (2022: 

16.982) 

million

MCB 

Islamic

To facilitate 
purchase of raw 
material including 
spare parts and to 
retire LC 
documents for 
murabaha import.

Joint pari passu hypothecation charge over stocks

and receivables of company with 25% margin, and

personal guarantees of all directors. 3 month 
KIBOR plus 
1.25% p.a

165 million 

(2022: 245)

0.02  million 

(2022: 0.07)

Dubai 

Islamic 

Bank 

Limited

Retirement of 

Sight LCs only 

established 

through DIBPL

First Joint pari passu hypothecation charge over

stocks, receivables, amounting to Rs. 333.334

million, Lien over import documents and personal

guarantees all sponsor directors.

Matching 
KIBOR plus 

1.15%

200.11 

(2022: 150) 

million

 Nil (2022: 

143.478) 

million

Faysal 

Bank 

Limited

Retirement of 

Sight LCs only

Joint pari passu hypothecation charge over stocks

and receivables amounting to Rs. 2,000 million

accepted trust receipt and personal guarantees of

sponsor directors

Relevant 
KIBOR plus 
1.0 % p.a

750 (2022: 

1,200) 

million

48.780 

(2022: 

417.532) 

million

Allied 

Bank 

Islamic 

Banking

Retirement of 

foreign 

LCs/contracts  

only.

Joint pari passu hypothecation charge over stocks

and receivables of Rs. 1,067 million and personal

guarantees of all exective directors.

Relevant  
KIBOR+ 

0.9%

500 (2022: 

100) million

 

410.64(2022

: 1.615) 

million

Bank 

Islami 

Limited

Retirement of 

Sight LCs only 

established 

through BIPL's 

counter.

Joint pari passu charge over current assets of

amounting to Rs. 1,200 million, along with 25%

margin and personal guarantees of all executive

directors.

Respective 
KIBOR plus 
1.25 % for 

Import 
murhaba 

and Karobar 
finance 

500 (2022: 

750)

million

500 (2022: 

93.476) 

million
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 2023  2022 
Note  - - - - Rupees in ‘000’- - - - 

25 COST OF SALES

Raw materials consumed 25.1  9,783,622  12,148,390 
Stores, spare parts and loose tools consumed 25.2  1,455,611  1,535,642 
Salaries, wages and other benefits 25.3  545,883  560,850 
Fuel and power  3,600,733  4,007,618 
Repairs and maintenance  11,598  14,711 
Communication  3,795  4,499 
Staff transportation  3,886  35,420 
Insurance  17,558  5,932 
Oil and fuel  25,700  26,024 
Depreciation 5.4  384,031  361,447 
Others  5,657  7,450 
Cost of goods manufactured  15,838,074  18,707,983 

Work in process
Opening stock  1,658,273  1,564,321 
Purchases  499,496  1,582,257 
Closing stock 8  (2,703,979)  (1,658,273)

 (546,210)  1,488,305 
Finished goods

Opening stock  2,513,325  2,474,695 
Closing stock 8  (2,042,997)  (2,513,325)

 470,328  (38,630)
Cost of Sales  15,762,192  20,157,658 

25.1 Raw materials consumed

Opening stock  7,685,229  4,862,130 
Purchases  6,901,976  14,971,489 

 14,587,205  19,833,619 
Closing stock 8  (4,803,583)  (7,685,229)

 9,783,622  12,148,390 

25.2 Stores, spare parts and loose tools consumed

Opening stock  2,054,803  1,726,320 
Purchases  1,761,705  1,864,125 

 3,816,508  3,590,445 
Closing Stock  (2,360,897)  (2,054,803)

 1,455,611  1,535,642 
 

25.3 Includes Rs. 21.98 (2022: Rs. 17.06) million in respect of staff retirement benefits related to provident fund.

23.2 During the previous year, when the sales tax regime of the Company was changed from special procedures to VAT 
mode, the Company, based on the physical stock taking as at June 30, 2019, by the officers of the sales tax department, 
has claimed sales tax refund of Rs. 804,079,660 under section 66 of the Sales Tax Act, 1990 on account of closing 
finished goods that were already taxed under special procedures. During the year ended June 30, 2021, Deputy 
Commissioner Inland Revenue through its order no. 07/2021 dated June 05, 2021 allowed only Rs. 204,995,078 and 
rejected the balance claim of Rs. 599,084,582. Being aggrieved, the Company has filed a constitutional petition (CP-
4400/2021) before Honourable High Court of Sindh for recovery of rejected claim. On October 10, 2022 the Honourable 
Court was pleased to pass an interim order that no coercive measures be taken against the Company. The matter is 
pending adjudication and the management based on the advice of its legal adviser expects a favourable outcome in the 
case. 

 2023  2022 
Note  - - - - Rupees in ‘000’- - - - 

23.3 Commitments

Outstanding against letter of credits - sight/usance 23.4  1,879,357  1,989,914 
Outstanding against letter of guarantees 23.5  267,377  211,771 
Capital commitments  195,688  436,052 

 2,342,422  2,637,737 
23.4 Letter of credits - sight / usance / acceptance

Available
Unavailed  3,279,000  4,847,000 

 904,863  2,142,292 
23.5 Letter of guarantees

Available
Unavailed  300,000  350,000 

 32,623  138,229 

24 TURNOVER - GROSS

Local sales  24,160,372  30,008,098 
Less: sales tax  (3,578,167)  (4,360,151)

 20,582,205  25,647,947 
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26.3.1 Agha Welfare Trust (the Trust) is a associated undertaking (related party) of the Company. The director of the Company, 
Mr. Hussain Iqbal Agha is the trustee of the Trust. 

26.3.2 No director(s) or their spouse had any interest in the donees to which these donations were made other than as 
disclosed in note 26.3.1 to these financial statements.

 2023  2022 
Note  - - - - Rupees in ‘000’- - - - 

27 SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION COSTS

Salaries, wages and other benefits 27.1  100,970  102,100 
Advertisement and marketing  37,429  63,083 
Postage and courier  703  655 
Rent  2,578  2,940 
Staff transportation  103  942 
Carriage and freight  125,459  121,383 
Brokerage  35,312  46,222 
Travelling and conveyance  4,601  3,502 
LC charges  -    145 
Communication  101  120 
Oil and fuel  838  849 
Entertainment  461  1,963 
Depreciation 5.4  10,129  9,533 
Others  1,146  245 

 319,830  353,682 
         
27.1 Includes Rs. 3.78 (2022: Rs. 2.92) million in respect of staff retirement benefits related to provident fund.  

      
         
27.2 Represents short term lease having lease term of 12 months or less that are recognised as expense on a straight line 

basis over the lease term.

 2023  2022 
Note  - - - - Rupees in ‘000’- - - - 

28 FINANCE COSTS

Mark up on long term finance  323,075  348,813 
Mark up on Sukuk  566,602  414,814 
Mark up on running finance  782,399  400,337 
Mark up on FATR  1,468,266  915,803 
Bank charges  32,856  37,931 
Bank commission on guarantees  4,867  143 
Markup on WPPF and WWF  20,643  5,597 

 3,198,708  2,123,438 
Mark up on supplier credit  -    1,765 
Finance lease obligation  10,027  10,626 

 10,027  12,391 
 3,208,735  2,135,829 

         

 2023  2022 
Note  - - - - Rupees in ‘000’- - - - 

26 ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Salaries and other benefits 26.1  132,114  133,426 
Director's remuneration  29,900  29,900 
Travelling and conveyance  7,209  12,657 
Repairs and maintenance  2,493  1,521 
Office expenses  16,408  11,286 
Fees and subscription  6,972  10,075 
Staff transportation  145  1,319 
Legal and professional fee  16,577  21,818 
Health and safety  1,058  1,161 
Oil and fuel  1,397  1,414 
Insurance  1,951  1,090 
Communication  141  168 
Security charges  213  5,447 
Auditors' remuneration 26.2  1,751  1,525 
Software development and consultancy  11,662  17,110 
Charity and donation 26.3  53,356  56,793 
Depreciation 5.4  16,682  15,701 
Amortization 6.1  6,280  6,280 
SECP Penalty  -    110 
Others  4,597  5,800 

 310,906  334,601 
 
26.1 Includes Rs. 4.94 (2022: Rs. 3.90) million in respect of staff retirement benefits related to provident fund. 

 2023  2022 
Note  - - - - Rupees in ‘000’- - - - 

26.2 Auditors' remuneration

Annual audit  1,210  1,050 
Code of corporate governance and other services  175  150 
Review of interim financial statements  281  250 
Out of pocket expenses  85  75 

 1,751  1,525 
 

26.3 The Company has not made any donations higher of Rs.1 million or 10% of the donations during the current year except 
as follows:

 2023  2022 
Note  - - - - Rupees in ‘000’- - - - 

Agha Welfare Trust 26.3.1  42,341  41,345 
Qasr e Fatima Widow Home  -    4,075 
Other donations - anonymous  11,015  8,850 
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 2023  2022 
Note  - - - - Rupees in ‘000’- - - - 

31 TAXATION - NET

Current tax  276,170  375,990 
Prior year tax 31.1  (19,460)  (30,768)
Deferred tax charge - net 19  6,697  88,377 

 263,407  433,599 
         
31.1 Represents adjustment made during the year to align tax refunds due from Government with the refundable as per 

Income Tax Return filed for the tax year 2020 (2022: tax year 2021). 

 2023  2022 
31.2 Relationship between tax expense and accounting profit  - - - - Rupees in ‘000’- - - - 

Accounting profit  1,168,303  2,288,369 

Tax at applicable tax rate of 29%  (338,808)  (663,627)
Effect of adjustments related to prior years  19,460  30,768 
Effect of alternate corporate tax regime  -    389,023 
Effect of minimum tax regime  263,827  -   
Effect of tax rebate / credits  -    13,033 
Effect of super tax  12,343  138,483 
Others  306,585  525,919 

 263,407  433,599 
32 PROVIDENT FUND TRUST

- Size of fund  42,598  47,309 

- Cost of investment  39,500  44,500 

- Fair value of investment  39,500  44,500 

- Percentage of investment 93% 94%

- Breakup of investment - Amounts
- in money market  39,500  44,500 

       
32.1 Investments from provident fund trust have been made in accordance with the provisions of section 218 of the Act and 

the rules formulated for this purpose. 

 2023  2022 
 - - - - Rupees in ‘000’- - - - 

33 EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic
Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders (Rupees in '000')  904,896  1,854,770 

Weighted average number of ordinary shares  604,879,100  604,879,100 

Earnings per share - (In Rupees)  1.50  3.07 
        

 2023  2022 
Note  - - - - Rupees in ‘000’- - - - 

29 OTHER EXPENSES

Workers welfare fund 20  6,297  28,262 
Workers profit participation fund 20  61,821  121,928 
Impairment loss on trade receivables - net 9.1  83,083  209,682 
Discounting charges of supplier 20.1  -    27,975 
Exchange loss - net  12,114  293,197 

 163,315  681,044 

30 OTHER INCOME

Income from financial instruments
Mark up on loan to associates (related parties) 9  79,105  61,930 
Mark up on deposit account  1,732  1,165 

 80,837  63,095 
Income from other than financial instruments

Reversal of provision for workers welfare fund 20.2  -    6,922 
Profit from air separation unit 30.1  265,603  214,808 
Gain on disposal of fixed assets - net  2,424  8,799 
Amortization of government grant 22 & 30.2  1,367  9,612 
Miscellaneous  845  -   

 270,239  240,141 
 351,076  303,236 

30.1 Profit from air separation unit (ASU)

Sales
Less: sales tax  614,995  497,715 
Net sales  (91,025)  (72,318)
Cost apportioned for supply of natural gas 30.1.1  523,970  425,397 

 (258,367)  (210,589)
 265,603  214,808 

30.1.1 Breakup of cost apportioned for supply of natural gas

Salaries wages and other benefits
Fuel and power  41,453  32,809 
Depreciation on ASU Plant 5.4  176,178  139,439 

 40,736  38,341 
 258,367  210,589 

        
30.2 Represent amortization of deferred government grant in respect of term finance facility obtained under SBP Salary 

Refinance Scheme that has been fully repaid during the year. There are no unfulfilled conditions or other contingencies 
attaching to this grant.
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35.2 Financial risk management        
         
 The Board of Directors of the Company has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company’s 

risk management framework. The Company has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:

-  Credit risk and concentration of credit risk 
- Liquidity risk 
- Market risk
- Operational risk
- Capital risk

35.3 Credit risk and concentration of credit risk       
   

 Credit risk is the risk that arises with the possibility that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge its 
obligation and cause the other party to incur a financial loss. The Company attempts to control credit risk by monitoring 
credit exposures by undertaking transactions with a large number of counter parties in various industries and by 
continually assessing the credit worthiness of counter parties.    

         
 The Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk is limited to the carrying amount of financial assets recognized at the 

reporting date.   
         
 Concentration of credit risk occurs when a number of counterparties have a similar type of business activities. As a 

result, any change in economic, political or other conditions would affect their ability to meet contractual obligations 
in similar manner. The Company’s credit risk exposure is not significantly different from that reflected in the financial 
statements. The management monitors and limits the Company’s exposure to credit risk through monitoring of client’s 
exposure and estimates of allowance for expected credit losses, if any.       
   

 The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure to credit risk 
at the reporting date is as follows: 

 2023  2022 
Note  - - - - Rupees in ‘000’- - - - 

Long term deposits and receivables 35.3.1  428,125  469,631 
Trade and other receivables - gross 35.3.2  5,397,882  5,637,893 
Loans 35.3.3  5,599  15,130 
Deposits 35.3.4  12,790  19,974 
Bank balances 35.3.5  83,856  211,787 

 5,928,252  6,354,415 
  
 The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities primarily for trade debts.

35.3.1 The Company believes that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect of long term receivables because these 
are not impaired.  

          
35.3.2 To manage the credit risk exposure of trade debts, the Company has developed a formal approval process whereby 

credit limits are applied to its customers. The management also regularly monitors the credit exposure towards the 
customers and makes allowance for ECLs against those balances considered doubtful of recovery. Total impairment 
loss at year end amounting to Rs. 449.087 million includes recognized during the year amounting to Rs. 83.083 million 
as disclosed in note 9.1 to these financial statements. To mitigate the risk, the Company has a system of assigning credit 
limits to its customers based on evaluation of customer profile and payment history. Outstanding customer receivables 
are regularly monitored.

 Diluted         
 Diluted earnings per share has not been computed because there are no dilutive potential ordinary shares. 

34 REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES    
       

 The aggregate amount charged in these financial statements for remuneration, including other benefits to the chief executive, 
directors and executives of the Company, are as follows. 

 

 

2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022

Managerial remuneration 10,909  10,909   14,040  14,040   295,403        285,943   
Medical allowance 1,091    1,091     1,560    1,560     29,540          28,594     

-        -        -        -        11,071          7,534      
Board and other meeting fee -        -        2,300    2,300     -                -         

Total 12,000  12,000   17,900  17,900   336,014        322,071   

No. of persons 1 1 6 6 105 107

Company's contributions 

Chief Executive Directors Executives

 - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - Rupees in '000' - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

 
           
34.1 Executive directors are also provided with the Company maintained cars. Further, current money values of respective 

cars were not disclosed due to practicability issues. 

 2023  2022 
Note  - - - - Rupees in ‘000’- - - - 

35 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT

35.1 Financial Instrument by Category
Financial Assets
- At amortized cost

Long term deposits and receivables 7  428,125  469,631 
Trade and other receivables - gross 9  5,397,882  5,637,893 
Loans 10  5,599  15,130 
Deposits 11  12,790  19,974 
Cash and bank balances 13  87,295  215,063 

 5,931,691  6,357,692 

Financial Liabilities
- At amortized cost

Long term borrowings including current portion 16  8,336,609  8,766,897 
Lease liabilities including current portion 18  143,158  139,395 
Trade and other payables 20  644,374  858,346 
Short term borrowings 21  13,728,859  14,045,946 
Accrued markup  807,704  672,265 

 23,660,704  24,482,849 
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2023

Financial Liabilities

Long term borrowings 8,336,609   8,336,609   2,056,335    2,056,335    4,747,648      (523,708)     

Supplier credit -              -              -              -               -                 -              

Lease liabilities 166,086      166,086      22,994         21,738         101,015         20,340        

Trade and other payables 644,374      644,374      644,374       -               -                 -              

Accrued markup 807,704      807,704      807,704       -               -                 -              

Short term borrowings 13,728,859 13,728,859 6,864,430    6,864,430    -                 -              

23,683,632 23,683,632 10,395,836  8,942,502    4,848,662      (503,368)     

Carrying 

amount

Contractual 

cash flows

Six months 

or less

Six to twelve 

months

One to three 

years

Three to five 

years and 

over

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - Rupees in '000' - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 

     

Financial Liabilities
Long term borrowings 8,766,897     8,766,897     2,532,032      832,032         4,816,131         586,702        
Supplier credit -              -              -               -                -                  -              
Lease liabilities 154,460        154,460        17,900          17,681           101,026           17,853          
Trade and other payables 858,346        858,346        858,346        -                -                  -              
Accrued markup 672,265        672,265        672,265        -                -                  -              
Short term borrowings 14,045,946    14,045,946    7,022,973      7,022,973       -                  -              

24,497,914    24,497,914    11,103,516 7,872,686       4,917,157         604,555        

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - Rupees in '000' - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 

2022
Carrying 
amount

Contractual 
cash flows

Six months 
or less

Six to twelve 
months

One to three 
years

Three to five 
years and 

 
 

35.5 Market Risk        
         
 Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices will 

affect the Company’s income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. 
     

a) Foreign Exchange Risk        
         
 Foreign exchange risk represents the risk that the fair value of the future cash flows of a financial instrument will 

fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. Foreign exchange risk arises mainly from foreign bills 
payables due to transactions in foreign currency. The Company is exposed to foreign exchange currency risk on 
the import of scrap, stores, and spares, mainly denominated in US dollars and AED. The Company’s exposure to 
foreign currency risk for Dollars and AED is as follows:

 2023  2022 
Note  - - - - Rupees in ‘000’- - - - 

Bills payables - foreign  403,481  308,950 
Outstanding against letter of credits - sight/usance  1,879,357  1,989,914 

 2,282,838  2,298,864 

 2023  2022 
 - - - - Rupees in ‘000’- - - - 

Ageing of trade debts (gross) are as follows:
Not past due  10,318  -   
Not past due 1-90 days  4,211,948  4,370,245 
Past due 91-180 days  92,507  109,820 
Past due 181-365 days  215,300  241,638 
More than one year  475,428  362,917 

 5,005,501  5,084,620 
  
 Other receivables are due from associated undertaking for which the Company is actively pursuing for the recovery and 

the Company does not expect that these receivables will fail to meet their obligations.    
            

35.3.3 These represent balances due from employees and associated undertaking for which the Company is actively pursuing 
for the recovery and the Company does not expect that these loans and advances will fail to meet their obligations.

  
35.3.4 The Company believes that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect of deposits because these are neither past 

due nor impaired.    
          
35.3.5 The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counter parties are banks with reasonably high credit ratings. The 

names and credit ratings of major banks, where the Company maintains bank balances are as follows: 

Name of  bank  Rating agency Credit rating
 Short-term Long-term

Askari Bank Limited   PACRA            A1+ AA+
Bank Al Habib Limited   PACRA            A1+ AAA
Bank Al-Falah Limited  PACRA  A1+ AA+
Bank Islami Pakistan Limited  PACRA  A1 AA-
Allied Bank Limited  PACRA  A1+ AAA
Bank of Khyber  PACRA  A1 A+
Bank of Punjab  PACRA  A1+ AA+
Dubai Islamic Bank Limited  VIS  A-1+ AA
Faysal Bank Limited  VIS  A-1+ AA
Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited   PACRA            A1+ AA+
Habib Bank Limited  VIS  A-1+ AAA
JS Bank Limited   PACRA            A1+ AA-
Meezan Bank Limited  VIS  A-1+ AAA
MCB Bank Limited   PACRA   A1+ AAA
MCB Islamic Bank Limited   PACRA   A1 A
National Bank of Pakistan   PACRA   A1+ AAA
Samba Bank Limited   PACRA   A1 AA
United Bank Limited  VIS  A-1+ AAA

  
35.4 Liquidity risk        
         
 Liquidity risk reflects the Company’s inability in raising funds to meet commitments. Liquidity risk arises because of the 

possibility that the Company could be required to pay its liabilities earlier than expected or difficulty in raising funds to 
meet commitments associated with financial liabilities as they fall due. The Company’s approach to manage liquidity is 
to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal 
and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company’s reputation. The 
Company’s liquidity management involves projecting cash flows and considering the level of liquid assets necessary to 
fulfil its obligation, monitoring financial position liquidity ratios against internal and external requirements and maintaining 
debt financing plans. Table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities; 
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 Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments 
 This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular foreign currency rates, remain constant. A change of 

100 basis points in interest rates at reporting date would have increased / (decreased) equity and profit or loss as 
follows: 

 Increase / 
(Decrease ) in 
basis points 

 (Decrease) 
/ Increase in 
profit before 

tax 
 Rs in ‘000’ 

June 30, 2023  +100  (217,861)
 -100  217,861 

June 30, 2022  +100  (224,865)
 -100  224,865 

  
 The sensitivity analysis prepared is not necessarily indicative of the effects on profit for the year and assets / liabilities 

of the Company.

c) Other price risk        
         
 Other price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of 

changes in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk), whether those changes 
are caused by factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar 
financial instruments traded in the market. At reporting date, the Company is not exposed to this risk. 

35.6 Operational Risk        
         
 Operational risk is the risk of direct or indirect loss arising from a wide variety of causes associated with processes 

technology and infrastructure supporting the company’s operations either internally within the Company or externally at 
the Company’s service providers, and from external factors other than credit, market and liquidity risks such as those 
arising from legal and regulatory requirements and generally accepted standards of investment management behaviour. 
Operational risk arises from the Company’s activities.       
  

 The Company’s objective is to manage operational risk so as to balance limiting of financial losses and damage to its 
reputation with achieving its investment objective of generating returns for investors.    
  

         
 The primary responsibility for the development and implementation of controls over operational risk rests with the board 

of directors. The responsibility encompasses the controls in the following areas:

i Requirements for appropriate segregation of duties between various functions, roles and responsibilities;  
      

ii Requirements for the reconciliation and monitoring of transactions;  
iii Compliance with regulatory and other legal requirements;  
iv Documentation of control and procedures; 
v Requirements for the periodic assessment of operational risk faced, and the adequacy of controls and procedures 

to address the risk identified; 
vi Ethical and business standards;
vii  Risk mitigation, including insurance where this is effective.

 Spot rate at reporting date  
 2023 2022

The following significant exchange rate has been applied:
AED to PKR  78.72  55.38 
USD to PKR  287.10  206.00 

  
 Sensitivity analysis
      
 At reporting date, if the PKR had strengthened by 10% against the AED and USD with all other variables held constant, pre tax 

profit for the year have been higher by the amount shown below: 

 2023  2022 
 - - - - Rupees in ‘000’- - - - 

Effect on profit or loss  228,284  229,886 
  
 The weakening of the PKR against AED and USD would have had an equal but opposite impact on the pre tax profit. 

   
        
 The sensitivity analysis prepared is not necessarily indicative of the effects on profit for the year and liabilities of the 

Company. 

b) Interest rate risk        
         
 The interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate 

because of changes in market interest rates. 
         
 The Company has interest bearing assets. Majority of the interest rate risk arises from the Company’s long-term 

borrowings and short-term borrowings. At reporting date, the interest rate profile of the Company’s interest bearing 
financial liabilities is:

2023  2023  2022 
"Effective  

interest rate  
(in percent)"

Carrying amount
- - - - -Rupees in '000'- - - - -

Variable rate instruments

Financial assets
- Long term receivable due from associated 16.16% to  419,144  460,650 
    undertaking (related party)”  20.93%  3,420  5,119 

- Deposit account 3.9% to 5.03%  422,564  465,769 

Financial liabilities
- Long term borrowings 3% to 23.33%  8,336,609  8,766,897 
- Lease liabilities 4.63% to 13.75%  143,158  139,395 
- Short term borrowings 15.15% to 23.33%  13,728,859  14,045,946 

 22,208,626  22,952,238 
Net variable rate instruments  (21,786,062)  (22,486,469)

  
 Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments 
 The Company does not account for any fixed rate financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss as the 

change in interest rates at reporting date would not affect profit or loss.      
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 2023  2022 
Note  M. Tons 

36 PLANT CAPACITY AND ACTUAL PRODUCTION 

 Billets 
Plant capacity  450,000  450,000 
Actual production  117,887  168,823 
Shortfall 36.1  332,113  281,177 

 Bars 
Plant capacity  250,000  250,000 
Actual production  102,374  144,606 
Shortfall 36.1  147,626  105,394 

 Liquid gases 
Plant capacity - cubic meters  16,800,000  16,800,000 
Actual production - cubic meters  10,363,333  9,807,035 
Shortfall - cubic meters  6,436,667  6,992,965 

Plants are located at Port Qasim Karachi
        

36.1 The short fall is mainly attributable to the ongoing economic recession and management’s intent to operate lean and 
optimize available resources to meet the current market demand.

37 OPERATING SEGMENTS          
 

 These financial statements have been prepared on the basis of a single reportable segment and the principal classes of products 
are deformed bars and billets. 

 (i)  Total sales of the company is made to the customers within the country.     
   

 (ii)  All non-current assets of the Company as at June 30, 2023 are located in Pakistan.    
    

 (iii)  The company’s principal classes of products accounted for the following percentage of sales:

 2023 2022  2023 2022
 - - - - Rupees in '000'- - - -  - - - - - percentage - - - - - 

Deformed bars  20,190,850  23,534,556 98% 92%
Billets  391,355  2,113,391 2% 8%

 20,582,205  25,647,947 100% 100%
        

38 TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES         
   

 The related parties comprise associated undertakings, directors and key management personnel of the Company. The Company 
in the normal course of business carries out transactions with various related parties. Amounts due to / from related parties are 
shown under respective notes to these financial statements. Remuneration of directors being the key management personnel are 
disclosed in note 34 to these financial statements. Other transactions with related parties during the year are as follows:

35.7 Capital risk management        
         
 The Company’s objective when managing capital are to safeguard the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern 

in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital 
structure to reduce the cost of capital. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure the Company may adjust 
the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, issue new shares and take other measures commensurate with the 
circumstances.

     
 Consistent with others in the industry, the company monitors capital on the basis of its gearing ratio. This is calculated 

as net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. Net debt is calculated as total borrowings from financial institutions less 
cash and bank balances. Total capital is calculated  as equity as shown in the statement of financial position plus net 
debt.

 2023  2022 
Note  - - - - Rupees in ‘000’- - - - 

Long term borrowings  8,336,609  8,766,897 
Lease liabilities  143,158  139,395 
Accrued markup  807,704  672,265 
Short term borrowings  13,728,859  14,045,946 

 23,016,330  23,624,503 

Less: Cash and bank balances  (87,295)  (215,063)
Net debt  A  22,929,035  23,409,440 
Total capital and reserves  16,570,450  15,665,554 
Total capital including net debt  B  39,499,485  39,074,994 

Gearing ratio  (C=A/B) 58% 60%
 
 In order to maintain the capital structure, the management may adjust payment of dividend and issue new shares.

35.8 Fair value of financial instruments       
 

         
 The carrying values of the financial assets and financial liabilities approximate their fair values. Fair value is the amount 

for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable, willing parties at arm’s length 
transaction. 

         
 Fair value hierarchy        
         
 In accordance with the requirements of IFRS 13 Fair value measurement, the Company classifies its investments in 

terms of following fair value hierarchy:        
 
Level 1:  Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.   

       
Level 2:  Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either 

directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices). 
         
Level 3:  Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable).

 As of the reporting date, the Company does not have any financial assets carried at fair value that 
required categorization in Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3. 
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39.1 IPO proceeds have been fully utilized. 

 2023  2022 
40 NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

Total number of employees at reporting date  350 395

Average number of employees during the year  373 353
 

41 GENERAL         
          
41.1 Figures have been rounded-off to the nearest thousand rupee, unless otherwise stated.    

       
41.2 Corresponding figures have been reclassified, whenever necessary for the purpose of compliance, comparison and 

better presentation.

42 DATE OF AUTHORIZATION FOR ISSUE 
  
 These financial statements were authorized for issue by the Board of Directors on 25th September, 2023.

 2023  2022 
Note  - - - - Rupees in ‘000’- - - - 

Associated Undertaking

Denim International (Private) Limited
Markup income received during the year  13,148  15,804 
Markup income accrued during the year  -    13,148 
Loan disbursed during the year 30  -    786,206 
Loan recovered / adjusted during the year  -    951,742 

Agha Steel Industries
Markup income received during the year  48,782  39,248 
Markup income accrued during the year  -    48,782 
Loan recovered during the year  41,506  48,316 
Loan recovered during the year against sales tax  172,236  -   

A & Z Associates
Sales during the year  118,984  141,493 
Receipts during the year  118,984  141,493 

Agha Steel Industries Staff Provident Fund
Employer contributions recognized by the Company  15,354  12,225 
Employee contributions recognized by the Company  15,354  12,225 
Total contributions made to the Trust by the Company  34,264  19,880 

          
39 UTILIZATION OF PROCEEDS FROM INITIAL PUBLIC OFFERING     

     
 In previous year, the Company issued its shares to general public through IPO to finance the project of expansion of its capicty 

by installing Mi. Da. Mill Rolling Plant from IPO proceeds as disclosed in note 1.2 to these finanacial statements. As at June 30, 
2023, the uilizaion of proceeds from IPO is as follows:

 2023  2022 
 - - - - Rupees in ‘000’- - - - 

 Proceeds from IPO  3,840,000  3,840,000 
 IPO related expenses  (225,275)  (225,275)
 Civil works  (1,073,825)  (1,073,825)
 Electrical   (452,023)  (452,023)
 Mechanical  (665,277)  (665,277)
 Duties and other taxes  (535,410)  (535,410)
 LC Discounting charges  (193,861)  (193,861)
 Air Separation Unit  (694,329)  (694,329)
 Unutilized balance  -    -   

  

Chief Executive Chief Financial Officer Director
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